# Trine University Franks School of Education Bachelor of Science major in English/Language Arts Education 5-12

Request for Approval of New Program Submitted May 9, 2016 By

Karen S. Hamilton, Ph.D., Dean, Franks School of Education

Amy Nicholls, Chair, Department of Humanities and Communication

Sarah Young, Ph.D., Assistant Professor, Department of Humanities and Communication

# Table of Contents

| Standard 1: Rationale   | 3  |
|---|----|
| Standard 2: Curriculum  | 5  |
| Standard 3: Clinical and Field Based Experiences  | 18 |
| Standard 4 Evaluation   | 19 |
| Standard 5 Governance   | 21 |
| Standard 6: Schedule  | 21 |
| Appendix A: Zipped file of Course Syllabi   | 21 |
| Appendix B: Four-Year Program Sheet for Licensure Program   | 22 |
| Appendix C: Student Teaching Evaluation Rubric & Student Teaching Lesson rubric for individual lessons observed |    |

# Trine University Franks School of Education Bachelor of Science major in English/Language Arts 5-12

# Standard 1: Rationale

### 1.1 Program Description

The proposed 5-12 English/Language Arts licensure program would offer Trine University students in the Franks School of Education (FSOE) the opportunity to earn a Bachelor of Science (B.S.) degree with 5-12 English/Language Arts licensure. This licensure program will require 120 hours of coursework and be attainable in four years. The program is modeled on Trine University's already-successful licensure programs in social studies, mathematics, chemistry, and life sciences. In addition to general education courses that have been carefully selected from the University's general education matrix to address English/Language Arts standards, students will take 34 hours of English content-area courses through the Department of Humanities and Communication (HAC) and 42 hours of professional education courses through FSOE. Courses would mostly be offered face-to-face on the University's main campus, with the option for students to take a small number of courses online. Many freshmen and sophomore general education courses are offered online throughout the year, and some residential students opt to take a few of these courses during their undergraduate career.

### 1.2 Needs Assessment Data

The rationale for the new program is to provide, upon graduation, highly effective practitioners prepared to teach English/Language Arts in a 5-12 setting. The proposed program meets a definite national and regional need for highly qualified English/Language Arts teachers.

According to the U.S. Department of Labor's most recent *Occupational Outlook Handbook*, "From 2014 to 2024, a significant number of older teachers will reach retirement age. Their retirement will create job openings for new teachers." The overall increase is projected to be 6%. The same rate of growth is projected for middle school teachers. *The New York Times* reported on August 9, 2015 that the "layoffs of the recession years combined with an improving economy in which fewer people are training to be teachers," have resulted in what the newspaper characterized as a nation-wide teacher shortage. The *Handbook* notes that there "is wide variation of job opportunities by region." Trine University's region of northeastern Indiana, southwestern Michigan and northwestern Ohio are facing particular need.

In March 2015, the U.S. Department of Education, Office of Postsecondary Education's *Teacher Shortage Areas 1990-1991 through 2015-2016* indicated that Indiana reported English/Language Arts as a shortage area in 2011-12. In February 2016, a survey of the Indiana Department of Education (IDOE) job listings showed 7% of available positions mid-school-year are in English Language Arts (36 of 491 openings). In addition, a 2015 press release by the IDOE, reports that since 2009, "Indiana has seen a more than 30% drop in the number of individuals issued initial teacher licenses each year." In September 2014, the Indiana State Board of Education approved a proposal to allow unlicensed college graduates to teach while earning state certification. In addition, the FSOE dean has received direct phone calls and emails from LEAs in southern and northwest Indiana inquiring about current preservice teachers or recent graduates who would be able to teach in the English/Language Arts courses in both middle school and

high school. Anecdotally, at recent career fairs, Trine University's English majors have been recruited aggressively by representatives from LEAs offering to hire them on this emergency-licensure basis.

The states of Michigan and Ohio show similar need. Ohio has reported a shortage of English/Language Arts teachers for grades 7-12 consistently since 2004-2005. The number of English/Language Arts jobs listed on the state department of education's website mid-year was similar to that of Indiana's. A 2009 report from the State of Michigan titled "NCLB Teacher Equity Plan" suggests that of the 12,000 language arts courses, 570 were taught by educators without "highly qualified" credentials. In 2015, the Michigan senate passed Senate Bill 491 which added writing and journalism to the list of subjects that may be taught by non-certified teachers. The bill is currently be reviewed by the Michigan House of Representatives.

It is in the best interest of the region's schools to have a pool of licensed educators well-prepared to meet the diverse needs of 21<sup>st</sup> Century Learners. Our research shows that that pool of educators in our region has steadily depleted, negatively affecting principals' ability to staff their classrooms with qualified English/Language Arts educators. Trine University's proposed program is a clear step toward meeting that need.

# Standard 2: Curriculum

# 2.1 Matrix: Content Standards for Educators – English/Language Arts

|   |                   | Tri                             | ne                    | Ur                             | niv                         | ers                  | ity                 | , Co                            | oui                     | se                          | s f                    | or t                       | the                          | Eı  | ngl               | ish                           | ı/L                             | anį                        | gua        | ige          | Α            | rts         | Ed                    | uc          | ato                   | r F                   | re                   | paı           | rati                 | or          |               |
|---|-------------------|---------------------------------|-----------------------|--------------------------------|-----------------------------|----------------------|---------------------|---------------------------------|-------------------------|-----------------------------|------------------------|----------------------------|------------------------------|---|-------------------|-------------------------------|---------------------------------|----------------------------|------------|--------------|--------------|-------------|-----------------------|-------------|-----------------------|-----------------------|----------------------|---------------|----------------------|-------------|---------------|
|   | G                 | ene                             | ral                   | Edu                            | cat                         | ion                  | Cou                 | ırse                            | ·s*                     |                             |                        |                            | Con                          | iter  | nt S <sub>l</sub> | oeci                          | ific                            | Cou                        | rse        | s            |              |             | Pro                   | fes         | sior                  | nal                   | Edu                  | cati          | on (                 | Cou         | rse           |
|   |                   |                                 |                       |                                |                             |                      |                     |                                 |                         | (                           |                        | ritin<br>po s              |                              | n   | Lit               |                               | rvey<br>B of s                  |                            | ake        | Ele          | ctiv         | es*         |                       |             |                       |                       |                      |               |                      |             |               |
|   | ENG 103           | ENG 113                         | ENG 153               | ENG 233                        | ENG 273                     | ENG 433              | FLM 203             | SP 203                          | COM 163                 | ENG 133                     | ENG 363                | ENG 453                    | ENG 412 & ENG 411L           | COM 183   | ENG 2013          | ENG 2023                      | ENG 2113                        | ENG 2123                   | ENG 253    | ENG 333      | ENG 3303     | ENG 3313    | EDU 232               | EDU 301     | EDU 303               | EDU 331               | EDU 332              | EDU 431       | EDU 442              | EDU 463     | EDU 470 & 471 |
| Indiana   |                   |                                 |                       |                                |                             |                      |                     |                                 |                         |                             |                        |                            |                              |   |                   |                               |                                 |                            |            |              |              |             |                       |             |                       |                       |                      |               |                      |             |               |
| Educator  |                   |                                 |                       |                                |                             |                      |                     |                                 |                         |                             |                        |                            |                              |   |                   |                               |                                 |                            |            |              |              |             |                       |             |                       |                       |                      |               |                      |             |               |
| Standards   |                   |                                 |                       |                                |                             |                      |                     |                                 |                         |                             |                        |                            |                              |   |                   |                               |                                 |                            |            |              |              |             |                       |             |                       |                       |                      |               |                      |             |               |
| Foundations     of Reading                                      | х                 |                                 |                       |                                |                             | Х                    | Х                   |                                 | Т                       | Т                           | Х                      |                            | Х                            | Т   |                   |                               |                                 |                            |            | Т            |              | х           |                       |             | Т                     | Х                     | х                    |               |                      |             | х             |
| 2. Reading<br>Informational<br>and Persuasive                   |                   |                                 |                       |                                |                             |                      |                     |                                 |                         |                             |                        |                            |                              |   |                   |                               |                                 |                            |            |              |              |             |                       |             |                       |                       |                      |               |                      |             |               |
| Texts   | Х                 | Χ                               |                       | Х                              |                             |                      |                     | Х                               |                         | Χ                           | Χ                      | Х                          | Х                            | Т   | L                 |                               | Х                               | Х                          | Т          | Т            |              | L           | L                     |             |                       |                       |                      |               |                      |             | oxdot         |
| 3. Reading Literary Texts                                       | х                 |                                 | х                     | х                              | х                           | х                    | х                   |                                 |                         |                             |                        |                            |                              |   | Х                 | х                             | х                               | х                          | х          | х            | Х            | х           |                       |             |                       |                       |                      |               |                      |             |               |
| 4. Components of Writing  | Х                 | х                               | х                     |                                | х                           | х                    | Х                   | х                               | Х                       | Х                           |                        | Х                          | Т                            | х   | х                 | Х                             | х                               | х                          |            | х            |              | Т           |                       |             |                       |                       |                      |               |                      |             |               |
| 5. Modes of<br>Writing  | х                 | х                               | х                     | х                              | х                           | х                    | х                   | х                               | х                       | Х                           |                        | х                          | х                            | х   | х                 | х                             | х                               | х                          | х          | Т            | х            | х           |                       |             |                       |                       |                      |               |                      |             |               |
| 6. Listening,<br>Speaking and<br>Interpersonal<br>Communicaiton | х                 | х                               |                       |                                | Т                           | Т                    |                     | х                               | х                       | X                           |                        |                            | х                            | х   |                   |                               |                                 |                            |            |              | Т            |             |                       |             |                       |                       |                      |               |                      |             |               |
| 7. Visual Literacy<br>and Media<br>Presentation                 | х                 |                                 | Т                     | Т                              | х                           |                      | х                   | х                               | х                       | х                           |                        |                            | Т                            | Т   | Т                 | Т                             |                                 |                            | Т          | Т            | х            | х           |                       |             |                       |                       |                      |               |                      |             |               |
| 8. Language Arts<br>Instruction and<br>Assessment               |                   |                                 |                       |                                |                             |                      |                     |                                 |                         |                             |                        |                            | Т                            |   |                   |                               |                                 |                            |            |              |              |             | х                     | х           | х                     | х                     | х                    | х             | x                    | х           | x             |
|   | *AI<br>tha<br>coi | l cou<br>it stu<br>mple<br>ered | urse<br>uder<br>ete t | s in<br>its to<br>heir<br>a ro | this<br>ake<br>deg<br>tatir | cat<br>thes<br>ree v | ego<br>e sp<br>with | ry a<br>pecif<br>o nly<br>. The | re in<br>fic c<br>/ 120 | clud<br>ours<br>tota<br>cou | ed o<br>ses a<br>al cr | n T<br>as p<br>edit<br>are | rine<br>art o<br>hou<br>offe | Universelves of the serves of | eir C             | ity's<br>Gene<br>ese<br>diffe | grid<br>eral l<br>repr<br>erent | ofa<br>Educ<br>ese<br>ttop | approation | ove<br>on re | d Ge<br>quir | ener<br>eme | al E<br>ents<br>ie fo | duca<br>mal | atior<br>kes<br>ed li | n co<br>it po<br>tera | urse<br>ssib<br>ture | s.M<br>ole fo | and<br>orth<br>ctive | latin<br>em | g             |

|   | _       |         |         |         |         |         |         |        |         |         |               |         |                   |         |          |          |          |          |         |         |          |          |          |         |         |         | _       | _             |         | _       | _       |               |
|---|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|--------|---------|---------|---------------|---------|-------------------|---------|----------|----------|----------|----------|---------|---------|----------|----------|----------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------------|---------|---------|---------|---------------|
|   | ENG 103 | ENG 113 | ENG 153 | ENG 233 | ENG 273 | ENG 433 | FLM 203 | SP 203 | COM 163 | ENG 133 | ENG 363       | ENG 453 | ENG 412 & ENG 411 | COM 183 | ENG 2013 | ENG 2023 | ENG 2113 | ENG 2123 | ENG 253 | ENG 333 | ENG 3303 | ENG 3313 | EDII 232 | EDU 232 | EDU 301 | EDU 303 | EDU 331 | EDU 332       | EDU 431 | EDU 442 | EDU 463 | EDU 470 & 471 |
| Performance Assessment Coding: (1) Test, (2) Essay, (3) P   | roje    | ct,     | (4) (   | Oral    | /Vis    | sual    | Pre     | esei   | ntat    | tion    | , (5          | ) Le    | sso               | n Pl    | an,      | (6)      | Fie      | ld E     | кре     | rier    | nce,     | (7) C    | Oth      | er,     | (T)     | ado     | lres    | sse           | d b     | ut n    | ot a    | sse           |
| Standard 1: Foundations of Reading English language arts  | tea     | che     | rs h    | ave     | a b     | roac    | d an    | d co   | omp     | rel     | nen           | sive    | un                | ders    | stan     | ndin     | g o      | fer      | er      | gen     | t lite   | eracy    | an an    | ıd v    | /or     | d-ic    | len     | tifi          | cati    | on s    | skill   | s,            |
| fluency, vocabulary development, and reading comprehe   | ensic   | on, i   | ncl     | udir    | ng:     |         |         |        |         |         |               |         |                   |         |          |          |          |          |         |         |          |          |          |         |         |         |         |               |         |         |         |               |
| 1.1 oral language development and the development of phonological and phonemic awareness  |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |        |         |         |               |         |                   |         |          |          |          |          |         |         |          | 4        | 1        |         |         |         | 6       | 1,<br>2       |         |         |         | 6             |
| 1.2 the development of concepts of print, letter knowledge, and letter–sound correspondence   |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |        |         |         |               |         |                   |         |          |          |          |          |         |         |          |          |          |         |         |         |         | Т             |         |         |         | 6             |
| 1.3 the development of phonics and other word-<br>identification skills   |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |        |         |         |               |         |                   |         |          |          |          |          |         |         |          |          |          |         |         |         | 6       | Т             |         |         |         | 6             |
| 1.4 the development of fluency  |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |        |         |         |               |         | 6                 |         |          |          |          |          |         |         |          |          |          |         |         |         | 6       | Т             |         |         |         | 6             |
| 1.5 word structures and contexts, the denotative and connotative meanings of words, word roots, and words that are derivatives or borrowings                                |         |         |         |         |         | Т       |         |        | Т       | Т       | 1,<br>4,<br>7 |         | 6                 |         |          |          |          |          |         |         |          |          |          |         |         |         | 6       | 4             | ļ       |         |         | 6             |
| 1.6 the historical, social, cultural, regional, and technological influences that have helped shape words and phrases in the English language                               |         |         |         |         |         | 1       | Т       |        |         |         | 4,<br>1       |         | 6                 |         |          |          |          |          |         | Т       |          |          |          |         |         |         |         | 7             | ,       |         |         | 6             |
| 1.7 factors that influence vocabulary development and reading comprehension, such as wide reading andreading rate   |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |        |         |         |               |         |                   |         |          |          |          |          |         |         |          |          |          |         |         |         |         | 1,<br>3,<br>7 |         |         |         | 6             |
| 1.8 comprehension strategies to use before, during, and after reading, such as previewing, predicting, and using think-alouds and graphic organizers                        | i       |         |         |         |         | Т       |         |        |         |         |               |         | 6                 | Т       |          |          |          |          |         |         |          | Т        |          |         |         | Т       | 6       | 2,            |         |         |         | -             |
| 1.9 comprehension strategies for reading across the curriculum, such as using metaphors and analogies to compare and contrast concepts in texts from multiple subject areas | 2       |         |         |         |         |         | 2       |        |         | Т       |               |         | 6                 |         |          |          |          |          |         |         |          |          |          |         |         | Т       | 6       | 5,<br>7       |         |         |         | 6             |

|   | ENG 103 | ENG 113 | ENG 153 | ENG 233 | ENG 273 | ENG 433 | FLM 203 | SP 203 | COM 163 | ENG 133 | ENG 363 | ENG 453 | ENG 412 & ENG 411 | COM 183 | ENG 2013 | ENG 2023 | ENG 2113 | ENG 2123 | ENG 253 | ENG 333 | ENG 3303 | ENG 3313 | EDU 232 | EDU 301 | EDU 303 | EDU 331 | EDU 332 | EDU 431 | EDU 442 |       | EDU 470 & 471 |
|---|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|--------|---------|---------|---------|---------|-------------------|---------|----------|----------|----------|----------|---------|---------|----------|----------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|-------|---------------|
| Performance Assessment Coding: (1) Test, (2) Essay, (3) Pr  | roje    | ct,     | (4) (   |         |         |         |         |        |         |         |         |         |                   |         |          | (6) F    | ielo     | d Ex     |         |         | ce,(     | (7) O    | ther    |         |         | dres    | sse     | d bu    | t no    | ot as | se            |
| Standard 2: Reading Informational and Persuasive Texts En<br>interpretation of informational and persuasive texts, inclu  | ıglis   | h la    |         |         |         |         |         |        |         |         |         |         |                   |         |          |          |          |          |         |         |          |          |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |       | 1             |
| 2.1 characteristics of various forms of informational and persuasive texts, such as textbooks, newspapers, magazines, maps, atlases, surveys, warranties, print advertisements, propaganda, and multimodal communications from the Internet | 3       |         |         |         |         |         |         |        |         |         |         | Т       |                   | Т       |          |          |          |          |         | Т       |          |          |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |       |               |
| 2.2 organizational features, formats, and structures of informational and persuasive texts, such as an index, a sidebar, schematics, and classification—division and problem—solution structures  |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |        |         | 1,<br>3 |         | Т       | 6                 | 2       |          |          |          |          |         |         |          |          |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |       |               |
| 2.3 the main idea and purpose of an informational or a persuasive text  | 1,<br>2 | 1,<br>2 |         | Т       |         |         |         |        |         |         | 4       |         | 6                 | Т       |          |          |          |          | Т       |         |          |          |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |       |               |
| 2.4 general statements and specific details provided in an informational or a persuasive text   | Т       | Т       |         | 4       |         |         |         |        |         |         | 4       |         | 6                 | Т       |          |          |          |          | Т       |         |          |          |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |       |               |
| 2.5 facts and opinions provided in an informational or a persuasive text  | 3       |         |         |         |         |         |         |        |         |         |         |         |                   | Т       |          |          |          |          | Т       |         |          |          |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |       |               |
| 2.6 relevance, importance, and sufficiency of evidence, examples, and reasons provided as support in an informational or a persuasive text  |         | 2       |         |         |         |         |         | 4      |         |         |         | 2       | 6                 | т       |          |          | 2        | 2        |         | т       |          |          |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |       |               |
| 2.7 reliability, objectivity, and credibility of sources used in an informational or a persuasive text  |         | 2       |         |         |         |         |         | Т      |         | Т       |         | 2       | 6                 | 2       |          |          | 2        | 2        |         |         |          |          |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |       |               |
| 2.8 explicit and implicit instructions, rules, recommendations, suggestions, and explanations provided in an informational or a persuasive text   |         |         |         |         |         |         | 2       |        |         | Т       |         | 2       |                   |         |          |          |          |          |         | Т       |          |          |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |       |               |

|  |         | Tr      | ine     | : U     | niv     | ver           | sit     | y C    | Cou     | ırse    | es '    | for     | th                | e E     | ng       | lisl       | h/l        | .an      | gu      | ago           | e A      | rts          | Ed      | uc       | ato     | or  | Pre     | epa     | ara     | itic    | n       |               |
|--|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------------|---------|--------|---------|---------|---------|---------|-------------------|---------|----------|------------|------------|----------|---------|---------------|----------|--------------|---------|----------|---------|-----|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------------|
|  | Ge      | ene     | ral     | Edu     | cat     | ion           | Co      | urse   | es*     |         |         |         | Со                | nte     | nt S     | pec        | ific       | Coı      | ırse    | !S            |          |              | Pr      | ofe      | ssic    | na  | l Ed    | luc     | atio    | on C    | our     | se            |
|  |         |         |         |         |         |               |         |        |         | Ó       |         | /ritin  | -                 | n       | Lit      | . Sui<br>3 | rvey<br>of |          | ake     | 11            |          | sed<br>/es** |         |          |         |     |         |         |         |         |         |               |
|  | ENG 103 | ENG 113 | ENG 153 | ENG 233 | ENG 273 | ENG 433       | FLM 203 | SP 203 | COM 163 | ENG 133 | ENG 363 | ENG 453 | ENG 412 & ENG 411 | COM 183 | ENG 2013 | ENG 2023   | ENG 2113   | ENG 2123 | ENG 253 | ENG 333       | ENG 3303 | ENG 3313     | EDU 232 | FD11 301 | EDU 303 | 000 | EDU 331 | EDU 332 | EDU 431 | EDU 442 | EDU 463 | EDU 470 & 471 |
| Performance Assessment Coding: (1) Test, (2) Essay, (3) P  | roje    | ct,     | (4) C   | Dral    | /Vi:    | sua           | l Pr    | ese    | nta     | tion    | ı, (5   | ) Le    | sso               | n Pl    | an,      | (6)        | Fiel       | d Ex     | креі    | rien          | ce,      | (7) (        | Othe    | er, (    | (T) a   | dd  | ress    | sed     | l bu    | t no    | ot as   | se            |
| Standard 3: Reading Literary Texts English language arts te interpretation of literary texts, such as literary nonfiction                                |         |         |         |         |         |               |         |        | •       |         |         | /e ui   | nde               | rsta    | ndi      | ng c       | ofth       | ie a     | naly    | /sis          | and      |              |         |          |         |     |         |         |         |         |         |               |
| 3.1 characteristics of various forms of literary texts, such as critical biography, short story, comedy of manners, and English sonnet                   | Т       |         | 1,      | 1       |         |               |         |        |         |         |         |         |                   |         | 1,<br>2  | 1,<br>2    | 1          | Т        |         | Т             | 1,<br>2  |              |         |          |         |     |         |         |         |         |         |               |
| 3.2 structural elements of literary texts, such as exposition, denouement, blank verse, and iambic pentameter  |         |         | 2       | 1       | 3       | т             | 1       |        |         |         |         |         |                   |         | 1        | 1          | 1          | Т        | Т       | 1             | Т        | :            | L       |          |         |     |         |         |         |         |         |               |
| 3.3 literary and rhetorical devices and techniques used in literary texts, such as flashback, foreshadowing, imagery, symbolism, soliloquy, and metaphor | 1,<br>2 |         | 1,<br>2 | Т       | 3       | 1,<br>2,<br>4 | 1       |        |         |         |         |         |                   |         | 1,<br>2  | 1,<br>2    | Т          | 2        | Т       | 1,<br>2       | 1,<br>3  | :            | L       |          |         |     |         |         |         |         |         |               |
| 3.4 points of view, tones, voices, and moods used in literary texts  | 1,<br>2 |         | Т       | Т       | 3       | 1,<br>2       | 1       |        |         |         |         |         |                   |         | Т        | Т          | 2          | 2        | Т       | Т             | 1,<br>3  | :            | L       |          |         |     |         |         |         |         |         |               |
| 3.5 diction or choice of words or word combinations used in literary texts   |         |         | Т       | Т       | 3       |               |         |        |         |         |         |         |                   |         | Т        | Т          | Т          | Т        | Т       |               | 1,<br>3  | т            |         |          |         |     |         |         |         |         |         |               |
| 3.6 development of characters, plot, and setting in literary texts   |         |         | Т       | 1       | 3       |               | 1       |        |         |         |         |         |                   |         | Т        | Т          | 2          | 2        | Т       | Т             | 1,<br>3  | :            | L       |          |         |     |         |         |         |         |         |               |
| 3.7 development of central ideas or themes in literary texts   | 1,<br>2 |         | 2       | 2       | 3       |               | 1       |        |         |         |         |         |                   |         | 2        | 2          | 2          | 2        | 2       | 1,<br>2,<br>3 | 1,<br>3  | :            | L       |          |         |     |         |         |         |         |         |               |
| 3.8 formal, stylistic, and thematic characteristics of major literary works, genres, movements, and periods and of major authors of literary texts       | 1,<br>2 |         | 1       | Т       |         |               | Т       |        |         |         |         |         |                   |         | 1        | 1          | 1,<br>2    | 1,<br>2  | Т       | 3             | 1        | Т            |         |          |         |     |         |         |         |         |         |               |
| 3.9 historical, social, cultural, and political contexts and influences of literary texts  |         |         | Т       | Т       |         |               | 1       |        |         |         |         |         |                   |         | Т        | Т          | 1,<br>2    | 1,<br>2  | 4       | 2,<br>4       | 1,<br>3  | :            |         |          |         |     |         |         |         |         |         |               |

|   |         | 7       | Γrir    | ne I    | Un      | ive     | rsi     | ty (   | Со      | ur            | ses       | fo             | r tl              | ne      | En       | gli        | sh        | /La      | ng      | ua      | ge       | Art          | s E     | du      | cat     | tor     | Pr      | ер      | ar       | ati     | on      | 1       |               |
|---|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|--------|---------|---------------|-----------|----------------|-------------------|---------|----------|------------|-----------|----------|---------|---------|----------|--------------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|----------|---------|---------|---------|---------------|
|   | G       | iene    | ral     | Edu     | cati    | ion     | Cou     | rse    | s*      |               |           |                | Cor               | nter    | nt S     | pec        | ific      | Cou      | ırse    | !S      |          |              | F       | Prof    | ess     | ion     | al E    | duc     | ati      | on (    | Cοι     | ırse    | S             |
|   |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |        |         |               | Wi<br>Com | riting<br>po s | -                 | n       | Lit      | . Sui<br>3 | vey<br>of | •        | ake     | II      | o cu     | sed<br>/es** |         |         |         |         |         |         |          |         |         |         |               |
|   | ENG 103 | ENG 113 | ENG 153 | ENG 233 | ENG 273 | ENG 433 | FLM 203 | SP 203 | COM 163 | ENG 133       | ENG 363   | ENG 453        | ENG 412 & ENG 411 | COM 183 | ENG 2013 | ENG 2023   | ENG 2113  | ENG 2123 | ENG 253 | ENG 333 | ENG 3303 | ENG 3313     | EDU 232 | EDU 301 | EDU 303 | EDU 322 | EDU 331 | EDU 332 | FD11 434 | EDU 431 | EDU 442 | EDU 463 | EDU 470 & 471 |
| Performance Assessment Coding: (1) Test, (2) Essay, (3) F   | roje    | ect,    | (4) (   | Oral    | /Vis    | ual     | Pre     | sen    | tat     | ion           | , (5)     | Les            | 1022              | n Pla   | an,      | (6)        | Fiel      | d Ex     | кре     | rien    | ce,      | (7) C        | Othe    | er, (   | T) a    | ddr     | ess     | ed l    | but      | not     | tas     | ses     | se            |
| Standard 4: Components of Writing English language arts   |         |         | s ha    | ve a    | bro     | ad      | and     | cor    | npr     | eh            | ensi      | ve ı           | ınd               | erst    | and      | ling       | of        | writ     | ing     | con     | ver      | ntior        | ıs, v   | vrit    | ing     | pro     | ces     | s, co   | om       | osi     | itio    | n,      |               |
| the research process, and electronic communication, inc<br>4.1 conventions of spelling, capitalization, and<br>punctuation  | 1,<br>2 | 1,<br>2 | 2       |         | 3       | 2       | 2       | 4      | 2,<br>3 | 3             |           | 2              | Т                 | 2       | 2        | 2          | 2         | 2        | Т       | 2       |          | 2            | 2       |         |         |         |         |         |          |         |         |         |               |
| 4.2 proper word usage and grammatical sentence structure  | 1,<br>2 | 1,<br>2 | 2       |         | 3       | 2       | 2       | 4      | 2,<br>3 | 3             |           | 2              | Т                 | 2       | 2        | 2          | 2         | 2        | Т       | 2       |          | 2            | 2       |         |         |         |         |         |          |         |         |         |               |
| 4.3 forms of writing to use for various purposes, such as entertaining or explaining, and audiences, such as a group of professional colleagues   | 2       | 2       |         |         |         | 2       |         |        |         | 2,<br>3,<br>4 |           | 2,<br>3,<br>4  | Т                 | Т       |          |            |           |          | Т       |         |          | Т            |         |         |         |         |         |         |          |         |         |         |               |
| 4.4 methods of discovering, developing, and shaping ideas for writing, such as freewriting and concept mapping  | Т       |         | Т       |         | Т       |         |         |        |         |               |           |                | Т                 | Т       | Т        | Т          | Т         | Т        | Т       |         |          |              |         |         |         |         |         |         |          |         |         |         |               |
| 4.5 methods of drafting, revising, editing, and proofreading texts, such as presenting key points logically, eliminating distracting details, and varying sentence length and structure   | 1,      | 2       | Т       |         | Т       |         |         | 4      | Т       | 3             |           | 2              | Т                 | Т       | Т        | Т          | Т         | Т        | Т       |         |          |              |         |         |         |         |         |         |          |         |         |         |               |
| 4.6 methods of developing effective introductions and conclusions to texts, such as using an anecdote and suggesting a course of action   | 1,      | 2       | 2       |         | 3       |         |         | 4      | Т       | 3             |           | 2              | Т                 | Т       | 2        | 2          | Т         | Т        | Т       |         |          |              |         |         |         |         |         |         |          |         |         |         |               |
| 4.7 methods of developing sentences, paragraphs, and texts that are clear, concise, and coherent, such as maintaining parallelism, using appropriate transitional words and phrases, and establishing and adhering to an organizational structure |         | 1, 2    | 2       |         | 3       |         |         |        |         | 3             |           | 2              | Т                 | 2       | 2        | 2          | Т         | Т        | Т       |         |          |              |         |         |         |         |         |         |          |         |         |         |               |
| 4.8 methods of finding, selecting, and refining topics for research projects, such as developing an interest inventory; asking specific, open-ended questions; and using Internet search engines effectively                                      |         | 3,      | Т       |         |         |         |         | 4      | Т       | Т             |           | Т              | Т                 | Т       | Т        | Т          | Т         | Т        | Т       |         |          |              |         |         |         |         |         |         |          |         |         |         |               |

|  |         | T       | Trir    | ne I    | Uni     | ive     | rsi     | ty     | Со      | urs     | ses     | fo      | r th          | ne l | Eng      | glis     | sh/          | /La      | ng      | ua      | ge .     | Art         | s E  | du      | cat     | or      | Pre     | pa      | ırat    | ior   | 1    |               |
|--|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|--------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------------|------|----------|----------|--------------|----------|---------|---------|----------|-------------|------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|-------|------|---------------|
|  | G       | ene     | ral     | Edu     | cati    | ion     | Cou     | ırse   | s*      |         |         |         | Con           | iten | t Sp     | eci      | ific         | Cou      | ırse    | S       |          |             | Р    | rofe    | essi    | ona     | l Ed    | luca    | tior    | ı Co  | urse | ès.           |
|  |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |        |         | (       |         | ritin ( | g &<br>sition |      | Lit.     |          | vey:<br>of 5 | s (ta    | ke      |         | o cu:    | sed<br>es** |      |         |         |         |         |         |         |       |      |               |
|  | ENG 103 | ENG 113 | ENG 153 | ENG 233 | ENG 273 | ENG 433 | FLM 203 | SP 203 | COM 163 | ENG 133 | ENG 363 | ENG 453 |               |      | ENG 2013 | ENG 2023 | ENG 2113     | ENG 2123 | ENG 253 | ENG 333 | ENG 3303 | ENG 3313    |      | EDU 301 | EDU 303 | EDU 322 | EDU 331 | EDU 332 | EDU 431 |       |      | EDU 470 & 471 |
| Performance Assessment Coding: (1) Test, (2) Essay, (3) P  | _       |         |         |         |         |         |         |        |         |         |         |         |               |      |          |          |              |          | _       |         |          |             |      | _       | _       |         |         |         |         |       |      | se            |
| Standard 4: Components of Writing English language arts t  |         |         |         | ve a    | bro     | oad     | and     | coı    | mpr     | rehe    | ensi    | ve ı    | ınde          | erst | and      | ing      | of v         | vrit     | ing     | con     | ven      | tion        | s, w | /riti   | ng p    | roc     | ess,    | cor     | npo     | sitic | on,  | - 1           |
| the research process, and electronic communication, inc  | ludi    | ng:     |         | _       | 1       |         |         |        |         |         | 1       |         |               |      | -        | -        |              |          |         |         |          |             |      |         | 1       | 1       |         | 1       |         | - 1   |      | 4             |
| 4.9 methods of locating and working with sources and documenting sources during research, such as skimming and then reading sources, assessing the |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |        |         |         |         |         |               |      |          |          |              |          |         |         |          |             |      |         |         |         |         |         |         |       |      |               |
| reliability of sources, and deciding on categories into  |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |        |         |         |         |         |               |      |          | I        |              |          |         |         |          |             |      |         |         |         |         |         |         |       |      | - 1           |
| which source information can be divided  | 2       | 2       |         |         |         |         |         |        |         |         |         | 2       |               |      | 2        | 2        | Т            | Т        |         |         |          |             |      |         |         |         |         |         |         |       |      | - 1           |
| 4.10 methods of paraphrasing, summarizing, and quoting source information and citing and acknowledging sources in a text                           | 2       | 2       |         |         |         | 2       |         |        | 2       |         |         | 2       | Т             | 2    | 2        | 2        | 2            | 2        | Т       | 2       |          |             |      |         |         |         |         |         |         |       |      |               |

|   |                 | T   | rin   | e l     | Jn   | ive     | rsi | ty  | Со  | ur | ses       | fo            | r tł | ne   | En   | gli        | sh,         | /La | ng   | ua   | ge .       | Art      | s E | du   | ıca    | to   | r P | re  | ра  | rat  | io   | <br>n |     |
|---|-----------------|-----|-------|---------|------|---------|-----|-----|-----|----|-----------|---------------|------|------|------|------------|-------------|-----|------|------|------------|----------|-----|------|--------|------|-----|-----|-----|------|------|-------|-----|
|   | G               | ene | ral I | Edu     | cati | on (    | Cou | rse | s*  |    |           |               | Cor  | nter | nt S | pec        | ific        | Cou | ırse | S    |            |          | F   | Prof | fess   | sior | nal | Εdι | uca | tior | ı Co | urs   | es  |
|   |                 |     |       |         |      |         |     |     |     |    | Wi<br>Com | riting<br>pos | •    | n    | Lit. | . Sur<br>3 | vey<br>of 5 |     | ıke  | ll . | o cu:      |          |     |      |        |      |     |     |     |      |      |       |     |
| Performance Assessment Coding: (1) Test, (2) Essay, (3) P   | ENG 103         |     |       | ENG 233 |      | ENG 433 |     |     |     |    |           |               |      | COM  |      | ENG 2023   |             |     |      |      | B ENG 3303 | ENG 3313 | EDU |      | T) 303 |      |     | EDO |     |      |      |       |     |
| Standard 5: Modes of Writing English language arts teacher  | ÷               | _   |       | _       |      |         |     |     |     |    |           |               |      |      | _    | • •        |             |     | •    |      | _          |          |     | - '  | _      |      |     |     |     |      |      |       | 336 |
| writing in various modes, including:  | 140             | _   |       |         |      |         |     |     |     |    |           |               |      |      | ı    | ı          |             |     | _    |      |            |          |     | _    | _      | _    | -   |     |     |      |      | _     | ┦   |
| 5.1 the purposes of descriptive, expository, persuasive, narrative, analytical, and other forms of writing  | 1,2<br>,3,<br>4 | 1,2 |       |         |      |         |     |     | 1   |    |           |               | т    |      |      |            |             |     |      | Т    |            |          |     |      |        |      |     |     |     |      |      |       |     |
| 5.2 methods of selecting specific nouns, such as wading pool or ocean instead of water, and strong verbs, such as murmur or bellow instead of speak, to use in descriptive and expository writing     | 1,2             |     |       |         | 3    |         |     |     | 1   | 3  |           |               | Т    | т    |      |            |             |     |      |      |            |          |     |      |        |      |     |     |     |      |      |       |     |
| 5.3 methods of incorporating multiple and various sensory details, such as <i>humming electric fan</i> and <i>cool wet clay</i> , in descriptive and narrative writing                                | 2               |     |       |         | 3    |         |     |     | 1   |    |           |               | Т    | т    |      |            |             |     |      |      |            |          |     |      |        |      |     |     |     |      |      |       |     |
| 5.4 methods of establishing a clear position or making a significant claim, such as <i>Every U.S. citizen should develop fluency in at least two languages</i> , in persuasive and analytical writing | 2               | 2   |       | 2       |      | 2       |     | 4   | 1,2 | 3  |           | 2             | Т    | т    |      |            | 2           | 2   | 2    |      | 2          |          |     |      |        |      |     |     |     |      |      |       |     |
| 5.5 methods of incorporating appropriate and effective examples, reasons, and evidence, such as relevant data and verifiable statements, in expository and persuasive writing                         | 2               | 2   | 2     | 2       |      | 2       |     | 4   | 1,2 | 3  |           | 2             | Т    | 2    | 2    | 2          | 2           | 2   | 2    |      | 2          |          |     |      |        |      |     |     |     |      |      |       |     |
| 5.6 methods of incorporating appropriate and effective styles, tones, and diction, such as projecting confidence rather than boastfulness, in expository and persuasive writing                       | 2               | 2   | 2     | 2       |      |         |     | Т   | 1,2 | 3  |           | 3             | Т    |      | 2    | 2          |             |     |      |      |            |          |     |      |        |      |     |     |     |      |      |       |     |
| 5.7 methods of developing narrative and persuasive writing that establishes a distinct point of view and is creative, compelling, and insightful  | 2               | 2   |       | 2       | 3    |         |     |     |     |    |           | 2             | Т    | Т    |      |            |             |     | 2    |      |            |          |     |      |        |      |     |     |     |      |      |       |     |
| 5.8 methods of developing a convincing critique or cogent analysis, such as comparing and contrasting different perspectives, in persuasive and analytical writing                                    | 2               | 2   | 2     | 2       |      | 2       | 2   |     |     |    |           | 2             | 2    | 2    | 2    | 2          | 2           | 2   | 2    | Т    | 2          | 2        | 2   |      |        |      |     |     |     |      |      |       |     |

|  | ENG 103 | ENG 113 | ENG   | ENG   |       |      |      |        |  | ENG  | ENG 363 |      |        | COM 183 |  | ENG | ENG | ENG 333 | ENG 3303 | ENG 3313 | _<br>_<br>_ | Д<br>Д |  |  | _ |      |
|--|---------|---------|-------|-------|-------|------|------|--------|--|------|---------|------|--------|---------|--|-----|-----|---------|----------|----------|-------------|--------|--|--|---|------|
| Performance Assessment Coding: (1) Test, (2) Essay, (3) P<br>Standard 6: Listening, Speaking, and Interpersonal Comm<br>listening and speaking effectively and communicating effe  | unic    | atio    | on Er | nglis | sh la | ingi | uage | e ar   | ts te  | eacl | her     | s ha | ve a   |         |  |     |     |         |          |          |             |        |  |  |   | asse |
| 6.1 characteristics of various types of listening and speaking, such as interviewing and empathic listening 6.2 barriers to listening, such as listening only to what is considered important, and methods of listening actively, such as restating and encouraging 6.3 types of speech delivery, such as impromptu, and methods of managing speech anxiety and apprehension, such as visualizing success  6.4 forms and functions of verbal and nonverbal interpersonal communication, such as clarifying and |         |         |       |       | T     | Т    |      | T<br>4 | 1,<br>2,<br>3,<br>4<br>1,<br>3,<br>4<br>1,<br>2,<br>3, | Т    |         |      | 6<br>T | 3       |  |     |     |         | Т        |          |             |        |  |  |   |      |
| validating  6.5 individual, social, and cultural factors that influence interpersonal communication, such as internal and external noise and perceptions of self and others  6.6 large- and small-group dynamics and factors that influence group communication, such as group composition and group members' roles  6.7 strategies for managing conflicts, solving problems, and making decisions in large and small groups, such   | 3       | 3       |       |       |       |      |      | Т      | 1,<br>2,<br>3,<br>4<br>2.<br>3.<br>4                   | Т    |         |      | T T    |         |  |     |     |         |          |          |             |        |  |  |   |      |

|   |         | Tri     | ine     | U       | niv     | er      | sit     | y C    | ou      | rse     | esi     | for             | th                | e E     | ng       | lisl     | h/L          | an,      | gua     | age     | e A            | rts      | Ed      | uca     | ato     | r P     | rep     | oar     | ati     | on      |               |
|---|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|--------|---------|---------|---------|-----------------|-------------------|---------|----------|----------|--------------|----------|---------|---------|----------------|----------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------------|
|   | Ge      | ene     | ralı    | Edu     | cati    | on      | Cou     | ırse   | s*      |         |         |                 | Со                | nte     | nt S     | pec      | ific         | Cou      | rse     | S       |                |          | Pro     | ofes    | sioi    | nal     | Edu     | cati    | on (    | Coui    | ses           |
|   |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |        |         | (       |         | ritin<br>n po : | •                 | n       | Lit      |          | rvey<br>of s | s (ta    | ke      |         | o c u<br>ectiv |          |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |               |
|   | ENG 103 | ENG 113 | ENG 153 | ENG 233 | ENG 273 | ENG 433 | FLM 203 | SP 203 | COM 163 | ENG 133 | ENG 363 | ENG 453         | ENG 412 & ENG 411 | COM 183 | ENG 2013 | ENG 2023 | ENG 2113     | ENG 2123 | ENG 253 | ENG 333 | ENG 3303       | ENG 3313 | EDU 232 | EDU 301 | EDU 303 | EDU 331 | EDU 332 | EDU 431 | EDU 442 | EDU 463 | EDU 470 & 471 |
| Performance Assessment Coding: (1) Test, (2) Essay, (3) Pr  | roje    | ct, (   | (4) C   | )ral    | /Vis    | ual     | Pre     | sei    | ntat    | tion    | , (5    | ) Le            | sso               | n Pl    | an,      | (6)      | Fiel         | d Ex     | per     | ien     | ce,            | (7) C    | the     | r, (T   | )ac     | ldre    | esse    | d b     | ut n    | ot a    | sse           |
| Standard 7: Visual Literacy and Media Presentation Englis<br>media and the use of media to present information and id   |         | _       | _       |         |         | ach     | ers     | hav    | e a     | bro     | ad a    | and             | con               | npre    | ehei     | nsiv     | e u          | nde      | rsta    | ndi     | ng c           | ofthe    | e an    | alys    | is a    | nd i    | nte     | rpre    | tati    | on o    | of            |
| 7.1 strategies for interpreting meanings and messages conveyed through visual images used in media texts and on the Internet, such as photographs and editorial cartoons  | 3       |         |         |         |         |         | 2       |        | 1,<br>4 |         |         |                 | Т                 |         |          |          |              |          |         | Т       |                | 2        |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |               |
| 7.2 knowledge of the ways in which elements of visual images used in media texts, such as shapes, scale, and perspective, are manipulated to emphasize or deemphasize certain meanings and messages                     | 3       |         |         |         |         |         | 1       |        | 1,<br>4 | 1,      |         |                 | Т                 |         |          |          |              |          |         |         |                | 2        |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |               |
| 7.3 knowledge of the ways in which personal, cultural, and historical context can influence the interpretation of media texts   |         |         | Т       |         | Т       |         | 1       |        | 1,<br>4 |         |         |                 | Т                 |         | Т        | т        |              |          | Т       | Т       |                | 1        |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |               |
| 7.4 knowledge of the ways in which media texts can effect social and political change, such as influencing public opinion   | Т       |         |         |         | Т       |         | Т       |        | 1       |         |         |                 |                   |         |          |          |              |          | Т       | Т       |                | Т        |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |               |
| 7.5 knowledge of the forms and functions of various media presentations, such as reportage and storytelling   |         |         |         | Т       | Т       |         | 1       |        |         |         |         |                 |                   | Т       |          |          |              |          |         | Т       |                | 1        |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |               |
| 7.6 strategies for selecting media and media combinations, such as a scale model, a slide presentation, a video recording, or animation, and various media projects and topics, such as a skit, comic strip, or podcast |         |         |         | Т       | 4       |         | Т       | 4      | 4       | 3       |         |                 |                   | Т       |          |          |              |          |         |         | 4              |          |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |               |
| 7.7 strategies for organizing, developing, and producing media presentations, such as mapping and storyboarding   |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |        | 4       | Т       |         |                 | Т                 | Т       |          |          |              |          |         |         |                |          |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |               |

|  |         | Tri     | ine     | : U     | niv     | /er | sit     | y C    | ou      | ırse    | es f     | for           | th                | e E | ng   | lisł | ո/L  | an       | gu   | age | e A      | rts      | Edı | uca  | to   | · Pı | еp     | ara  | atio | on   |               |
|--|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|-----|---------|--------|---------|---------|----------|---------------|-------------------|-----|------|------|------|----------|------|-----|----------|----------|-----|------|------|------|--------|------|------|------|---------------|
|  | G       | ene     | ral     | Edu     | cat     | ion | Cοι     | ırse   | es*     |         |          |               | Со                | nte | nt S | pec  | ific | Cou      | ırse | S   |          |          | Pro | fess | sion | al E | duc    | cati | on ( | Cou  | rses          |
|  |         |         |         |         |         |     |         |        |         |         | W<br>Com | ritin<br>npos | -                 | n   | Lit  |      | vey: | s (ta    | ke   |     | o cu:    |          |     |      |      |      |        |      |      |      |               |
|  | ENG 103 | ENG 113 | ENG 153 | ENG 233 | ENG 273 |     | FLM 203 | SP 203 | COM 163 | ENG 133 | ENG 363  | ENG 453       | ENG 412 & ENG 411 |     |      |      |      | ENG 2123 |      |     | ENG 3303 | ENG 3313 |     |      |      | EDU  |        | EDU  |      |      | EDU 470 & 471 |
| Performance Assessment Coding: (1) Test, (2) Essay, (3) Postandard 8: English Language Arts Instruction and Assessment |         |         |         |         |         |     |         |        |         |         |          |               |                   |     |      |      |      |          |      |     |          |          |     |      |      |      |        |      |      | ot a | sse           |
| instruction and assessment in English language arts, include   |         | _       | ,       |         |         |     |         |        |         |         |          |               |                   |     |      |      |      |          |      |     |          |          |     |      |      |      | - J-J- |      |      |      |               |
| 8.1 the Indiana Academic Standards and Core  |         |         |         |         |         |     |         |        |         |         |          |               |                   |     |      |      |      |          |      |     |          |          |     |      |      |      |        | 5,   |      |      |               |
| Standards for English/Language Arts  |         |         |         |         |         |     |         |        |         |         |          |               |                   |     |      |      |      |          |      |     |          |          |     | 5    | 5    | 6    | 2      | 6    | 5    | Т    | 6             |
| 8.2 the Common Core State Standards for English  |         |         |         |         |         |     |         |        |         |         |          |               |                   |     |      |      |      |          |      |     |          |          |     |      |      |      |        |      |      |      |               |
| Language Arts, the NCTE/NCATE Program Standards for  |         |         |         |         |         |     |         |        |         |         |          |               |                   |     |      |      |      |          |      |     |          |          |     |      |      |      |        |      |      |      |               |
| Initial Preparation of Teachers of Secondary English   |         |         |         |         |         |     |         |        |         |         |          |               |                   |     |      |      |      |          |      |     |          |          |     |      |      |      |        |      |      |      |               |
| Language Arts, and the ISTE National Educational   |         |         |         |         |         |     |         |        |         |         |          |               |                   |     |      |      |      |          |      |     |          |          |     | 5,   |      | 5,   |        | 5,   |      |      |               |
| Technology Standards   |         |         |         |         |         |     |         |        |         |         |          |               |                   |     |      |      |      |          |      |     |          |          | Т   | 6    | 5    | 6    | 7      | 6    | 5    | Т    | 6             |
| 8.3 strategies for differentiating instruction in English  |         |         |         |         |         |     |         |        |         |         |          |               |                   |     |      |      |      |          |      |     |          |          |     |      |      |      |        |      |      |      |               |
| language arts to meet the needs of diverse learners,   |         |         |         |         |         |     |         |        |         |         |          |               |                   |     |      |      |      |          |      |     |          |          |     |      |      |      |        |      |      |      |               |
| such as students with varying levels of reading  |         |         |         |         |         |     |         |        |         |         |          |               |                   |     |      |      |      |          |      |     |          |          | 3,  |      |      | 5,   |        |      | 2,   |      |               |
| proficiency or varying linguistic backgrounds  |         |         |         |         |         |     |         |        |         |         |          |               | Т                 |     |      |      |      |          |      |     |          |          | 6   | 1    | 1    | 6    | 5      | 6    | 5    |      | 6             |
| 8.4 knowledge of the interrelationships and similarities   |         |         |         |         |         |     |         |        |         |         |          |               |                   |     |      |      |      |          |      |     |          |          |     |      |      |      |        |      |      |      | П             |
| among the English language arts, such as the use of  |         |         | l       |         |         |     |         |        |         |         |          |               |                   |     |      |      |      |          |      |     |          |          |     |      |      |      |        |      |      |      |               |
| vocabulary and grammar and the construction of   |         |         | ĺ       |         |         |     |         |        |         |         |          |               |                   |     |      |      |      |          |      |     |          |          |     | 1,   |      |      | 1,     |      | 2,   |      |               |
| meaning  | 1       |         | 1       |         |         |     |         |        |         |         |          |               |                   | 1   |      |      |      |          |      |     |          |          | ĺ   | 6    | 1    | 6    | 5      |      | 5    |      | 6             |
| 8.5 strategies for integrating English language arts   | Ī       |         |         |         |         |     |         |        |         |         |          |               |                   | T   |      |      |      |          |      |     |          |          | Ī   |      |      |      |        |      |      |      | $\neg$        |
| instruction across the curriculum, such as planning and  | 1       |         | l       |         |         |     |         |        |         | 1       |          |               |                   | 1   |      |      |      |          |      |     |          |          | 1   |      |      |      |        | 3,   |      |      |               |
| teaching cross-curricular thematic units on a particular   | 1       |         | l       |         |         |     |         |        |         | 1       |          |               |                   | 1   |      |      |      |          |      |     |          |          | 1   |      |      | 5,   | 1,     | 5,   |      |      |               |
| topic or book while differentiating instruction  |         |         |         |         |         |     |         |        |         |         |          |               |                   |     |      |      |      |          |      |     |          |          | Т   | 6    | 1    | 6    | 3      | 6    | 5    |      | 6             |
| 8.6 strategies for integrating English language arts   | T       |         |         |         |         |     |         |        | T       | Ī       |          | İ             | T                 | T   |      |      |      |          |      |     |          |          | Ī   |      |      |      |        |      |      |      | $\dashv$      |
| instruction with electronic resources and technology,  |         |         | l       |         |         |     |         |        |         |         |          |               |                   |     |      |      |      |          |      |     |          |          |     |      |      |      |        |      |      |      | ŀ             |
| such as Web logs/blogs, CD or DVD simulation   |         |         |         |         |         |     |         |        |         |         |          |               |                   |     |      |      |      |          |      |     |          |          |     |      |      |      |        |      |      |      | ŀ             |
| programs, and multimedia presentations, including the  |         |         | l       |         |         |     |         |        |         |         |          |               |                   |     |      |      |      |          |      |     |          |          |     |      |      | 5,   |        | 5,   |      |      | ŀ             |
| integration of images, text, and audio   |         |         | l       |         |         |     |         |        |         |         |          |               |                   |     |      |      |      |          |      |     |          |          | 3   | 6    | 1    | 6    |        | 6    | Т    | 1    | 6             |

|   | lacksquare | Tr      | ine     | U       | niv     | er.     | sit     | y C    | ou      | rse     | es '    | for     | th                | e E     | ng       | lisł       | 1/L      | an       | gu      | age     | e A      | rts      | Edu     | ıca     | to      | r Pı    | rep     | ar      | atio    | on      | _             |
|---|------------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|--------|---------|---------|---------|---------|-------------------|---------|----------|------------|----------|----------|---------|---------|----------|----------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------------|
|   | G          | ene     | ral     | Edu     | cati    | ion     | Cou     | ırse   | s*      |         |         |         | Со                | nter    | nt S     | pec        | ific     | Cou      | rse     | S       |          |          | Pro     | fes     | sior    | nal E   | du      | cati    | on C    | lou'    | rse           |
|   |            |         |         |         |         |         |         |        |         | (       |         | /ritin  | -                 | n       | Lit      | . Sur<br>3 | veys     | ,        | ke      |         | o cu:    |          |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |         |               |
|   | ENG 103    | ENG 113 | ENG 153 | ENG 233 | ENG 273 | ENG 433 | FLM 203 | SP 203 | COM 163 | ENG 133 | ENG 363 | ENG 453 | ENG 412 & ENG 411 | COM 183 | ENG 2013 | ENG 2023   | ENG 2113 | ENG 2123 | ENG 253 | ENG 333 | ENG 3303 | ENG 3313 | EDU 232 | EDU 301 | EDU 303 | EDU 331 | EDU 332 | EDU 431 | EDU 442 | EDU 463 | EDU 470 & 471 |
| Performance Assessment Coding: (1) Test, (2) Essay, (3) Pr  | roje       | ct,     | (4) (   | Oral    | /Vis    | ual     | Pre     | esei   | ntat    | tion    | , (5    | ) Le    | sso               | n Pla   | an,      | (6) I      | iel      | d Ex     | per     | ien     | ce,      | (7) O    | the     | r, (T   | ) a d   | dre     | sse     | d bı    | ut no   | ot a    | SS            |
| Standard 8: English Language Arts Instruction and Assessm instruction and assessment in English language arts, include  |            |         | glish   | ı lan   | igua    | ige a   | arts    | tea    | che     | ers h   | ave     | e a b   | roa               | d an    | d c      | omį        | orel     | nen      | sive    | un      | der      | tano     | ding    | of      | on      | tent    | -sp     | ecif    | ic      |         |               |
| 8.7 instructional strategies for developing reading proficiency, such as semantic mapping or using directed reading-thinking activities (DR-TA), and writing proficiency, such as sustained spontaneous writing (SSW) or arranging for peer conferences   |            |         |         |         |         |         |         |        |         |         |         |         | Т                 |         |          |            |          |          |         |         |          |          |         |         |         | 5,<br>6 | 5,<br>7 |         | Т       |         | 6             |
| 8.8 instructional strategies for developing listening proficiency, such as using structured listening activities (SLA) or investigative questioning procedures (InQuest), and speaking proficiency, such as helping students prepare for and engage in debates or design and give oral reports and demonstrations |            |         |         |         |         |         |         |        |         |         |         |         |                   |         |          |            |          |          |         |         |          |          |         |         |         | 5,<br>6 | 7       |         | Т       |         | (             |
| 8.9 instructional strategies for developing visual and media literacy, such as using seeing-thinking activities (STA) or helping students design a Web page or produce a video presentation   |            |         |         |         |         |         |         |        |         |         |         |         |                   |         |          |            |          |          |         |         |          |          | 3       |         |         | 5,<br>6 | 3       |         | Т       | 3       |               |
| 8.10 knowledge of classroom-based, informal assessments and assessment tools used for English language arts, such as rubrics, running records, attitude and interest inventories, portfolios, self-assessments, and observation of student work with the use of checklists and anecdotal records                  |            |         |         |         |         |         |         |        |         |         |         |         |                   |         |          |            |          |          |         |         |          |          | 3       | 6       | 5,<br>1 | 5,<br>6 | Т       |         | 5       |         | ,             |

|   |                            | Tri | ine | e U | niv                      | ver | sit   | y C | ou  | ırse                         | es f | for           | th | e E                  | ng  | lisl       | 1/L         | an,  | gu | age | e A           | rts         | Edı            | uca             | ito      | r Pı | rep    | ara  | itic           | n                          |
|---|----------------------------|-----|-----|-----|--------------------------|-----|-------|-----|-----|------------------------------|------|---------------|----|----------------------|-----|------------|-------------|------|----|-----|---------------|-------------|----------------|-----------------|----------|------|--------|------|----------------|----------------------------|
|   | General Education Courses* |     |     |     | Content Specific Courses |     |       |     |     | Professional Education Cours |      |               |    |                      |     | ours       |             |      |    |     |               |             |                |                 |          |      |        |      |                |                            |
|   |                            |     |     |     |                          |     |       |     |     |                              |      | riting        | _  | n                    | Lit | . Suı<br>3 | vey<br>of 5 | •    | ke |     | o cu<br>ectiv | sed<br>es** |                |                 |          |      |        |      |                |                            |
| Performance Assessment Coding: (1) Test, (2) Essay, (3) P Standard 8: English Language Arts Instruction and Assessm | ent                        | Eng |     |     | /Vi                      | sua | l Pre |     | nta | tior                         | , (5 | U<br>N<br>Le: |    | ∑<br>O<br>O<br>n Pla | an, | (6) I      | elei        | d Ex |    | ien | ce,           |             | n<br>G<br>Othe | ∩<br>G<br>r, (T | ∩<br>Gad |      | sse    | d bu | _<br>G<br>t no | s EDU 463<br>EDU 470 & 471 |
| instruction and assessment in English language arts, include 8.11 knowledge of the general types of formal          | ling                       |     |     | Γ   | Ι                        | Π   | Π     | 1   | 1   | 1                            |      | I             | 1  | П                    |     |            |             |      |    |     |               |             | Т              | Т               | Т        | 1    | $\Box$ |      | 1              |                            |
| assessments used for English language arts, such as   |                            |     |     |     |                          |     |       |     |     |                              |      |               |    |                      |     |            |             |      |    |     |               |             |                |                 |          |      |        |      |                |                            |
| normreferenced, standardized tests and criterion-   |                            |     |     |     |                          |     |       |     |     |                              |      |               |    |                      |     |            |             |      |    |     |               |             |                |                 |          |      |        |      |                |                            |
| referenced tests, and of specific types of formal   |                            |     |     |     |                          |     |       |     |     |                              |      |               |    |                      |     |            |             |      |    |     |               |             |                |                 |          |      |        |      |                |                            |
| assessments used for English language arts in Indiana,  |                            |     |     |     |                          |     |       |     |     |                              |      |               |    |                      |     |            |             |      |    |     |               |             |                |                 |          |      |        |      |                |                            |
| such as the Indiana Statewide Testing for Educational   |                            |     |     |     |                          |     |       |     |     |                              |      |               |    |                      |     |            |             |      |    |     |               |             |                |                 |          |      | 3,     |      |                | 3                          |
| Progress Plus (ISTEP+) and End-of-Course Assessments (ECAs)   |                            |     |     |     |                          |     |       |     |     |                              |      |               |    |                      |     |            |             |      |    |     |               |             |                |                 | 1,<br>3  | 6    | 5,     |      |                | 6                          |

# 2.2 Syllabi for Courses in the English/Language Arts Licensure Program

See attached zipped folder (Appendix A) for each of the course syllabi:

For sequencing of the program over four years, eight semesters, see Appendix B.

# Required General Education Courses that Address Content-Area Standards

ENG 103 Composition I

ENG 113 Composition II

ENG 153 Introduction to Literature

**ENG 233 Creative Writing** 

ENG 273 Mythology

ENG 433 Shakespeare and His Times

FLM 203 Film Appreciation

SP 203 Effective Speaking

COM 163 Interpersonal Communication

# **English Content-Area Courses**

ENG 363 The English Language

ENG 133 Technical Communication

**ENG 453 Advanced Composition** 

**ENG 412 Writing Center Consulting** 

ENG 411L Writing Center Consulting Lab (taken twice)

COM 183 Writing for the Media

ENG 2013 British Literature I

ENG 2023 British Literature II

ENG 2113 American Literature I

ENG 2123 American Literature II

ENG 253 Readings in World Literature

ENG 3303 The Bible as Literature

ENG 3313 Graphic Novels

# Courses within the FSOE

EDU 232 Educational Psychology-Middle/Secondary

EDU 301 Introduction to Teaching Practicum

EDU 303 Introduction to Teaching

EDU 331 Reading in the Content Area Practicum

EDU 332 Reading in the Content Area

EDU 431 Practicum in Teaching—Secondary Teacher

EDU 442 Special Methods-Secondary Teacher

EDU 463 Educational Media and Technology

EDU 470 Student Teaching

Below, find a table of courses that address each of the following:

- Assessment
- Use of Technology to impact P-12 student learning
- Cultural Competency
- Scientifically Based Reading Instruction

| Topic                      | Course Syllabus Reference  |
|----------------------------|--|
| Assessment                 | EDU 301, EDU 303, EDU 331. EDU 332, EDU 431, EDU 442, EDU 463, EDU 470 |
| Technology Integration     | EDU 303, EDU 411, EDU 412, EDU 422, EDU 431, EDU 442, EDU 463, EDU 470 |
| <b>Cultural Competency</b> | EDU 322, EDU 470   |
| SBRR/SBRI                  | EDU 331, EDU 332, EDU 470  |

# Standard 3: Clinical and Field Based Experiences

- **3.1** A student teaching placement of 10 weeks in the appropriate grade-level and subject-area will be arranged by the placement officer in the Franks School of Education. All placements are initiated by the FSOE a year in advance through cooperation with district superintendents' offices.
- **3.2** All student teaching placements are supervised by a University-employed faculty member, adjunct or full-time, with significant 5-12 classroom experience. Cooperating teachers are recommended by building principals who make those recommendations based on teacher evaluations. Cooperating teachers meet the following requirements:
  - hold a regular standard license to teach in the content area and/or grade level where the student teacher will be participating.
  - have a minimum of three years of teaching experience at the grade level/content area for which
    the request is made and be regarded as a master teacher by faculty, staff, and parents with the
    school district.
- **3.3** As is currently required by the Franks School of Education in other 5-12 licensure programs, preservice teachers in the English/Language Arts program will continue to complete Analysis of Student Performance (ASP) assessments in each of three different courses. Each ASP is designed to increase the level of difficulty and ensure that the preservice teacher has designed and implemented a course of instruction that is differentiated for all students. In addition, evidence must be provided through artifacts and data collection to determine if the learning outcomes were met. The process of lesson design and assessment tools is explained. Preservice teachers must describe their data collection including results in both pre and posttests. Conclusions are drawn as to how effective the lessons were for the students. These extensive analyses are required in the EDU 303/301, EDU 332/331, and EDU 470.
- **3.4** Tracking of preservice teachers' field placements will be conducted, in order to be sure that they have exposure to the different grade levels and to schools with recognized diversity in the geographical area within a 50 mile radius of the University. This tracking is done through a data base which is monitored by the FSOE administrative assistant.

All preservice teachers including those in secondary licensure programs have placements throughout their program in a variety of settings starting with the EDU 111 course. The placements are kept in the data base with accessibility to all faculty. This specific tracking system will continue for preservice teachers in the English/Language Arts licensure program.

In addition, the Franks School of Education has a placement coordinator whose main role is to obtain placements for each field experience and track all preservice teachers' placements according to school, grade level, and content area. The coordinator in turn works with the FSOE administrative assistant for expanding the current data base. This placement coordinator has a number of years' experience working with all populations of students in the area school districts. Monitoring preservice teachers in all field experiences is done under the direction of the dean.

# Standard 4: Evaluation

**4.1** UAS summary is as follows. Documentation is submitted into TASKSTREAM<sup>TM</sup>, the electronic data base. The table here identifies the specific courses, requirements, GPA requirements, observation and evaluation forms, and Benchmark interview scores. Preservice teachers must meet each Benchmark before progressing to the next level of courses.

# Standard Based Portfolio – Program Completion – TASKSTREAM

- Benchmark 1 (Portfolio 1)
- EDU 111 Final Reflection rev F 2015
- EDU 211 Final Reflection rev F 2015
- Professional Dispositions 1
- Course Grade Rgrmt. (Four--Course Grade Requirements)
- Program Admittance (Requires FSOE program Admittance from the Dean)
- Interview Dispositions
- Interview Score
- Bnchmk 1 Completion

EDU 222 or 232 Case Study (EDU 222 or 232 Ed. Psych.)

EDU 303 Lesson Plan (EDU 303 Lesson Planning)

EDU 301 ASP 1 (EDU 301 Analysis of Student Performance

EDU 322 Cultural Diversity Reflection

Dispositions 2 rev F 2015

EDU301CprtgTchr Eval Rev F 2015 (301 Final Evaluation by Cooperating Teacher

EDU 301 Observation (EDU 301-1 Observation Evaluation Rubric)

Interview Dispositions rev F 2015

Interview Score rev F 2015

Bnchmk 2 Completion (Benchmark 2 Completion)

- Benchmark 3 (Portfolio 3)
  - EDU 312 Lesson Plan (EDU 312 Lesson Plan for Special Needs Students)

- EDU 332/EDU445Article Critique (EDU 333/445 Article Critique)
- EMB/EDU 331 ASP 2 (Analysis of Student Performance 2)
- EMB/EDU 331 Diversity Reflections
- EDU 464 Thematic Unit
- Content Artifacts (Content Artifacts within Student Licensure Area)
- Dispositions 3 rev F 2015
- EMB/EDU 331 Obsvtn (EMB/EDU 333 Observation Evaluation)
- EMB/331 CprtqTchr Ev rev F15 (EMB/EDU 331 Cooperating Teacher Evaluation)
- Bnchmk 3 Completion (Benchmark 3 Completion)

# Benchmark 4 (Portfolio 4)

- EDU 473 Issues (Foundations of American Education)
- EDU 462 Assessment Instrument
- EDU 470/471 ASP 3 (Analysis of Student Performance ASP 3)
- EDU 470 Coop Tchr Final Ev rev 2015
- EDU 470 Final Observation
- Final Interview Dispositions rev F 2015
- Final Interview Score rev F 2015
- Benchmark 4 Completion

### 4.2 Evaluation of Student Teaching

All education majors are observed and evaluated on a regular basis when they are in the practicums. As soon after the observation as possible, students meet with their University supervisor to discuss the comments and evaluation made about the teaching. This evaluation is also shared with the cooperating teachers. The evaluation scores for both the cooperating teacher evaluations are entered into the TaskStream database. (Note above, for example, the EDU 333/EMB Observation and the EDU 470 Cooperating Teacher Evaluation and the EDU 470 Final Evaluation.) The posting of these evaluations allows for the FSOE to continuously track students' progress.

The tools and rubrics for evaluating the student teaching experience in the special education setting will follow those used for the current elementary education student teaching experience. Necessary changes will be made to reflect the nature of the specific special education setting along with the specific skill sets that will need to be met by preservice teachers. Attached in APPENDIX C are the current rubrics now used for preservice teachers in the elementary student teaching setting. These are completed by the cooperating teachers and the University supervisor. The scores on each evaluation are entered into the TaskStream<sup>TM</sup> data base.

# They are:

# EDU 470 STUDENT TEACHING EVALUATION FORM

These forms are used by the cooperating teacher at both the midterm conference and the final conference. Both meetings are attended by the University supervisor and the preservice student teacher

# **EDU 470 OBSERVATION GRID**

This form is completed by anyone who observes the student teacher during the student teaching experience. This person is usually the University supervisor, however, it may also

# Standard 5: Governance

Current program leadership in the Franks School of Education is under the dean, Karen S. Hamilton, Ph.D., associate professor. Dr. Hamilton oversees all operations of the FSOE. This includes monitoring of all curricula, serving as the data manager for the UAS, maintaining the advising model implemented by the University, monitoring all field experiences, and hiring of all personnel. She reports directly to the University Vice President of Academic Affairs, Dr. Allen Hersel, Ph.D. Dr. Hamilton was an active member of the NCATE visit in 2011 and has been involved in two other NCATE visits before coming to Trine. She has been serving with schools of education and teacher training programs since 1987.

Senior faculty members in the FSOE are Amy M. Alexander, Ed.D., assistant professor, and Anthony Kline, Ph.D., assistant professor. Dr. Alexander currently oversees the field experiences required of all secondary education major in all content areas. She also teaches the elementary methods block for math and science, and the educational psychology courses for those majors. Dr. Kline teaches the elementary methods block for language arts and social studies and the educational psychology course for the elementary majors. He also holds a masters in special education.

Mrs. Kathy Pollock serves as full time faculty member for the teaching of reading courses, children's literature, and reading in the content area courses. She has 32 years of elementary teaching which includes serving as a reading interventionist, reading support instructor, and special ed district coach.

The Department of Humanities and Communication currently has two faculty members who are qualified to teach English/Language Arts Methods courses. Sarah Young, Ph.D., assistant professor, holds a Master of Science in Language Education from Indiana University. She also has several years of experience as an English/Language Arts teacher in secondary schools in Indiana and Kentucky. Her doctoral dissertation on nineteenth-century American literature was accepted May 4, 2016. Mrs. Amy Nicholls, assistant professor, was a secondary English/Language Arts teacher in the State of Michigan for fourteen years before moving into her current position. She also holds a Master of Arts in English Literature from Western Michigan University.

# Standard 6: Schedule

The Board of Trustees at Trine University, along with the President, Vice President, and faculty has approved the move toward the 5-12 licensure program in English/Language Arts. Once the IDOE gives its full approval, the program will be offered to students as early as those entering the University hopefully as early as the Fall of 2016. Currently, the Trine University Admissions Office is waiting for the State approval of this program in order for them to begin marketing this licensure program to prospective students.

# Appendix A: Zipped file of Course Syllabi

See separate attachment for all course syllabi in zipped folder labeled "Trine University Course Syllabi Dual Licensure Program"

# Appendix B: Four-Year Program Sheet for Licensure Program

|                                 |  | 4 year program  |   | Program Total: 120 minin   | num  |  |
|---------------------------------|--|---|---|--|--|--|
|                                 | STATUS   | notes   | FRESHMAN SPRIM  | NG   | STATUS   | notes  |
| Freshman Practicum              |  |   | ENG 113   | English Comp II  |  |  |
| English Comp I                  |  |   | PSY 113   | Principles of Psychology   |  |  |
| Introduction to Literature      |  |   | MA 113 or higher  | Algebra or hgiher  |  |  |
| Interpersonal Communication     |  |   |   | Literature survey/elective   |  |  |
| University Experience           |  |   |   | Social Science Elective  |  |  |
| Science Elective                |  | hours   |   |  |  | hours  |
|                                 | STATUS   | notes   | SOPHOMORE SPRIN   | IG   | STATUS   | notes  |
| Sophomore Practicum             |  |   | EDU 232   | Educational Psych  |  |  |
| Effective Speaking              |  |   | ENG 233   | Mythology  |  |  |
| Film Appreciation               |  |   | ENG 273   | Creative Writing   |  |  |
| Technical Communication         |  |   | COM 183   | Writing for the Media  |  |  |
| Writing Center Consulting & Lab |  |   | ENG 411L  | Writing Center Lab   |  |  |
| Literature survey/elective      |  |   |   | Literature survey/elective   |  |  |
| Take and Pass CASA Basic Skill  | ls Test  | hours   |   |  |  | hours  |
|                                 | STATUS   | notes   | JUNIOR SPRING   |  | STATUS   | notes  |
| Intro to Teaching               |  |   | EDU 412   | The Middle School  |  |  |
| Practicum for EDU 303           |  |   | EDU 422   | Middle School Methods  |  |  |
| Exceptional Children            |  |   | EDU 411   | Middle School Practicum  |  |  |
| Culturally Responsive Teaching  |  |   | ENG 363   | The English Language   |  |  |
| Shakespeare & His Times         |  |   | ENG 453/303   | Advanced Comp/Tech Com   |  |  |
| Literature survey/elective      |  |   |   | Literature survey/elective   |  |  |
|                                 |  | hours   |   |  |  | hours  |
|                                 |  | Hours   | Take and Pass Re  | equired Licensure tests  |  | nours  |
|                                 | CTATUS   |   | CENTOD CODING   |  | CTATUS   |  |
|                                 | SIAIUS   | notes   |   |  | SIAIUS   | notes  |
| •                               |  |   |   |  | -  |  |
|                                 |  |   |   |  | -  |  |
| † <b>'</b>                      |  |   |   |  | -  |  |
|                                 |  |   | EDU 471   | Student Teaching Seminar   | ļ  |  |
| Literature survey/elective      | l  | 1   |   | 1  |  |  |
|                                 | English Comp I Introduction to Literature Interpersonal Communication University Experience Science Elective  Sophomore Practicum Effective Speaking Film Appreciation Technical Communication Writing Center Consulting & Lab Literature survey/elective Take and Pass CASA Basic Skil  Intro to Teaching Practicum for EDU 303 Exceptional Children Culturally Responsive Teaching Shakespeare & His Times Literature survey/elective  Content Reading & Practicum Practicum in Teaching - Sec Special Methods - ENG Ed Media and Tech | Freshman Practicum English Comp I Introduction to Literature Interpersonal Communication University Experience Science Elective  STATUS Sophomore Practicum Effective Speaking Film Appreciation Technical Communication Writing Center Consulting & Lab Literature survey/elective Take and Pass CASA Basic Skills Test  STATUS Intro to Teaching Practicum for EDU 303 Exceptional Children Culturally Responsive Teaching Shakespeare & His Times Literature survey/elective  STATUS  STATUS Content Reading & Practicum Practicum in Teaching - Sec Special Methods - ENG Ed Media and Tech | Freshman Practicum English Comp I Introduction to Literature Interpersonal Communication University Experience Science Elective hours  STATUS Sophomore Practicum Effective Speaking Film Appreciation Technical Communication Writing Center Consulting & Lab Literature survey/elective Take and Pass CASA Basic Skills Test hours  STATUS Intro to Teaching Practicum for EDU 303 Exceptional Children Culturally Responsive Teaching Shakespeare & His Times Literature survey/elective hours  STATUS Content Reading & Practicum Practicum in Teaching - Sec Special Methods - ENG Ed Media and Tech | Freshman Practicum English Comp I English Comp I Introduction to Literature Interpersonal Communication University Experience Science Elective  STATUS Sophomore Practicum Effective Speaking Film Appreciation English Com I ENG 233 Film Appreciation English Sension English Sophomore Practicum EDU 232 Effective Speaking Film Appreciation English Sension English Sensi | Freshman Practicum English Comp I  English | Freshman Practicum English Comp I  English Language English Lang |

# Appendix C: Student Teaching Evaluation Rubric & Student Teaching Lesson rubric for individual lessons observed

# Trine University Franks School of Education EDU 470 STUDENT TEACHING EVALUATION

Same rubric is used for Mid-term and Final Assessment

| PRACTICUM STUDENT:   | SUBJECT/GRADE: |
|----------------------|----------------|
| COOPERATING TEACHER: | SCHOOL:        |

Directions: The following grids are based in the program objectives of the Franks School of Education and the InTASC model of teaching principles which support the mission of the FSOE to prepare knowledgeable, reflective educators. Please use the scale below to check the box that most accurately reflects your observations of the preservice teacher for each area. Consider the level of sophistication that would be expected in the application of knowledge sand skills of the preserice teachers in this practicum.

- 4 = EXEMPLARY (MEETS PROGRAM OBJECTIVE AT LEVEL OF ACCOMPLISHED PRESERVICE PRACTITIONER)
- 3 = MEETS STANDARD (ADEQUATELY MEETS PROGRAM OBJECTIVE)
- 2 = **DEVELOPING** (BEGINNING EVIDENCE OF MEETING PROGRAM OBJECTIVE)
- 1 = REMEDIATION NEEDED (DOES NOT MEET MINIMUM EXPECTATIONS)

| <b>Program Objective 1:</b> The practicum student understands how learners grow and develop, recognizing that patters of learning and development vary individually within and across the cognitive, linguistic, social, emotional, and physical areas, and designs and implements developmentally appropriate and challenging learning experiences. The practicum student- | 1 | 2 | 3 | 4 |
|---|---|---|---|---|
| exhibits knowledge about the intellectual, social, and personal development of the  |   |   |   |   |
| learners for this grade level.  |   |   |   |   |
| plans and implements developmentally appropriate lessons.   |   |   |   |   |
| Comments:   |   |   |   |   |
|   |   |   |   |   |
|   |   |   |   |   |

My overall rating for program objective 1 = 1 2 3

| Program Objective 2: The practicum student uses understanding of individual          | 1 | 2 | 3 | 4 |
|--|---|---|---|---|
| differences and diverse cultures and communities to ensure inclusive learning        |   |   |   |   |
| environments that enable each learner to meet high standards. The practicum student- |   |   |   |   |
| is knowledgeable about students with exceptionalities.                               |   |   |   |   |
| plans and adapts lessons to meet the needs of diverse learners.                      |   |   |   |   |
| plans lessons that address multiple intelligences.                                   |   |   |   |   |
| plans lessons that address learning styles and modes of learning.                    |   |   |   |   |
| Comments:  |   |   |   |   |

# My overall rating for program objective 2 = 1 2 3

| <b>Program Objective 3:</b> The practicum student works with others to create environments | 1 | 2 | 3 | 4 |
|--|---|---|---|---|
| that support individual and collaborative learning, and that encourage positive social     |   |   |   |   |
| interaction, active engagement in learning, and self-motivation. The practicum student-    |   |   |   |   |
| exemplifies active and equitable engagement of learners.                                   |   |   |   |   |
| creates a positive learning climate of open and mutual respect.                            |   |   |   |   |
| uses allocated lesson time for maintaining learners' attention, including starting lessons |   |   |   |   |
| on time.   |   |   |   |   |
| Comments:  |   |   |   |   |

# My overall rating for program objective 3 = 1 2 3

| Program Objective 4: The practicum student understands the central concepts, tools of | 1 | 2 | 3 | 4 |
|---|---|---|---|---|
| inquiry, and structures of discipline (s) he or she teaches and creates learning      |   |   |   |   |
| experiences that make the discipline accessible and meaningful for learners to assure |   |   |   |   |
| mastery of the content. The practicum student-  |   |   |   |   |
| exhibits content knowledge in his/her subject area(s).                                |   |   |   |   |
| adds to class discussion without relying on textbook(s).                              |   |   |   |   |
| plans lessons related to real life situations when appropriate.                       |   |   |   |   |
| uses media, manipulatives, labs, and other materials to clarify content when needed.  |   |   |   |   |
| Incorporates the use of technology to enhance lessons.                                |   |   |   |   |
| Comments:   |   |   |   |   |

My overall rating for program objective 4 = 1 2 3

| <b>Program Objective 5:</b> The practicum student understands how to connect concepts and use differing perspectives to engage learners in critical thinking, creativity, and | 1 | 2 | 3 | 4 |
|---|---|---|---|---|
| collaborative problem solving related to authentic local and global issues. The practicum   |   |   |   |   |
| student -   |   |   |   |   |
| uses cooperative learning during instruction.   |   |   |   |   |
| frames lesson plans within 21st Century Learning themes   |   |   |   |   |
| creates lesson plans that encourage participation by all students.  |   |   |   |   |
| encourages appropriate listening skills.  |   |   |   |   |
| establishes and consistently enforces classroom rules and procedures.   |   |   |   |   |
| uses appropriate motivation strategies.   |   |   |   |   |
| respects students and encourages respectful behavior in class.  |   |   |   |   |
| Comments:   |   |   |   |   |
|   |   |   |   |   |

My overall rating for program objective 5 = 1 2 3 4

| <b>Program Objective 6:</b> The practicum student understands and uses multiple methods of assessment to engage learners in their own growth, to monitor learner progress, and to guide the teacher's and learner's decision making. The practicum student - | 1 | 2 | 3 | 4 |
|--|---|---|---|---|
| assesses prior student learning.   |   |   |   |   |
| gives feedback when necessary as means of monitoring student learning.   |   |   |   |   |
| uses multiple assessment strategies.   |   |   |   |   |
| demonstrates for the learners the need for quality work.   |   |   |   |   |
| Comments:  |   |   |   |   |

My overall rating for program objective 6 = 1 2 3

| Program Objective 7: The practicum student plans instruction that supports every    | 1 | 2 | 3 | 4 |
|---|---|---|---|---|
| student in meeting rigorous learning goals by drawing upon knowledge of content     |   |   |   |   |
| areas, curriculum, cross-disciplinary skills, and pedagogy, as well as knowledge of |   |   |   |   |
| learners and the community context. The practicum student -                         |   |   |   |   |
| does necessary planning prior to teaching with needed materials organized and       |   |   |   |   |
| available.  |   |   |   |   |
| bases lesson plans in the learning outcome(s) and aligned standards.                |   |   |   |   |
| plans appropriate sequencing of learning experiences.                               |   |   |   |   |
| exemplifies planning based on prior learner knowledge and assessment data.          |   |   |   |   |
| exemplifies an understanding of learning theory and human development.              |   |   |   |   |
| Comments:   |   |   |   |   |
|   |   |   |   |   |
|   |   |   |   |   |

My overall rating for program objective 7 = 1 2 3 4

| <b>Program Objective 8:</b> The practicum student understands and uses a variety of instructional strategies to encourage students' development of critical thinking, problem solving, and performance skills. The practicum student - | 1 | 2 | 3 | 4 |
|--|---|---|---|---|
| uses a variety of instructional strategies.  |   |   |   |   |
| creates lesson plans that encourage critical thinking.   |   |   |   |   |
| creates lesson plans that develop performance skills.  |   |   |   |   |
| asks effective questions to aid in developing higher order thinking in learners.   |   |   |   |   |
| Comments:  |   |   |   |   |

My overall rating for program objective 8 = 1 2 3

| Program Chicative Q. The procticum student is a reflective proctition or who engage in        | 1 | 2 | 2 | 1 |
|---|---|---|---|---|
| <b>Program Objective 9:</b> The practicum student is a reflective practitioner who engages in |   | 2 | 3 | 4 |
| ongoing professional learning and uses evidence to continually evaluate his/her               |   |   |   | ĺ |
| practice, particularly the effects of his/her choices and actions on others (learners,        |   |   |   | ĺ |
| families, other professionals, and the community), and adapts practice to meet the            |   |   |   | ł |
| needs of each learner. The practicum student-   |   |   |   |   |
| accepts feedback from cooperating teacher and university supervisor.                          |   |   |   |   |
| reflects upon lessons and evaluates effectiveness.  |   |   |   |   |
| re-teaches, if necessary, after reflecting on lesson.   |   |   |   |   |
| Is responsive to needed changes in lesson planning and implementing.                          |   |   |   |   |
| Comments:   |   |   |   |   |
|   |   |   |   | ł |
|   |   |   |   | ł |
|   |   | i | ĺ | 1 |

My overall rating for program objective 9 = 1 2 3 4

| Program Objective 10: The practicum student seeks appropriate leadership roles and | 1 | 2 | 3 | 4 |
|--|---|---|---|---|
| opportunities to take responsibility for student learning and development, to      |   |   |   |   |
| collaborate with learners, families, colleagues, other school professionals, and   |   |   |   |   |
| community members to ensure learner growth, and to advance the profession. The     |   |   |   |   |
| practicum student -  |   |   |   |   |
| has good rapport with cooperating teacher(s).                                      |   |   |   |   |
| establishes a professional relationship with students.                             |   |   |   |   |
| is prepared for class.   |   |   |   |   |
| maintains a safe classroom environment.  |   |   |   |   |
| assumes responsibility for student learning.                                       |   |   |   |   |
| Comments:  |   |   |   |   |
|  |   |   |   | 1 |
|  |   |   |   | 1 |

My overall rating for program objective 10 = 1 2 3

| Professional Dispositions The practicum student -            | 1 | 2 | 3 | 4 |
|--|---|---|---|---|
| dresses in a professionally appropriate manner.              |   |   |   |   |
| exhibits maturity in professional situations.                |   |   |   |   |
| makes eye-contact with students.                             |   |   |   |   |
| smiles.  |   |   |   |   |
| praises students when appropriate.                           |   |   |   |   |
| dignifies student responses.                                 |   |   |   |   |
| has realistic expectations of students.                      |   |   |   |   |
| greets students.   |   |   |   |   |
| uses appropriate grammar and vocabulary in written materials |   |   |   |   |
| uses appropriate grammar and vocabulary when speaking.       |   |   |   |   |

My overall rating for professional dispositions = 1 2 3

MY OVERALL RATING OF THIS PRACTICUM STUDENT = 1 2 3 4

- **4 = EXEMPLARY** (MEETS PROGRAM OBJECTIVE AT LEVEL OF ACCOMPLISHED <u>PRESERVICE</u> PRACTITIONER)
- 3 = MEETS STANDARD (ADEQUATELY MEETS PROGRAM OBJECTIVE)
- 2 = **DEVELOPING** (BEGINNING EVIDENCE OF MEETING PROGRAM OBJECTIVE)
- 1 = **DEVELOPING** (DOES NOT MEET MINIMUM EXPECTATIONS)

| ΔD     | DITI | ΟΝΔΙ  | COM   | MENTS:   |
|--------|------|-------|-------|----------|
| $\neg$ | _,,, | CIVAL | COIVI | VILIVIJ. |

| SIGNATURE OF         |         |  |
|----------------------|---------|--|
| COOPERATING TEACHER: | DATE: _ |  |

Updated 05/2015

# TRINE UNIVERSITY FRANKS SCHOOL OF EDUCATION EDU 470 STUDENT TEACHING near beginning of student teaching \_\_\_\_

near middle of student teaching

|               | near end of student teaching |
|---------------|------------------------------|
| TU STUDENT:   | DATE:                        |
| SCHOOL:       | SUBJECT/GRADE:               |
| LESSON TOPIC: | EVALUATOR:                   |

<u>Evaluation Overview</u> This form is completed three times during the student teaching experience. Below is the scale for evaluation. Exemplary is reserved for those items that exceed expectations and a comment should be added to support this rating. Consider the level of sophistication that would be expected in the application of knowledge and skills of the preservice teacher in this practicum.

| CRITERION 1 REMEDIATION NEEDED | 2 DEVELOPING | 3 MEETS THE STANDARD | 4 EXEMPLARY SCOR |
|--------------------------------|--------------|----------------------|------------------|
|--------------------------------|--------------|----------------------|------------------|

### PROFESSIONAL DISPOSITIONS

|                 | 1 Remediation Needed            | 2 Developing              | 3 Meets Standard                          | 4 Exemplary | SCORE |
|-----------------|---------------------------------|---------------------------|---|-------------|-------|
| PROFESSIONAL    | Appearance and/or hygiene is    | Some modification needed  | Appearance is appropriate for a           |             |       |
| APPEARANCE (PD) | unacceptable                    | to present a professional | professional position in a school setting |             |       |
|                 |                                 | image                     |   |             |       |
|                 | 1 Remediation Needed            | 2 Developing              | 3 Meets Standard                          | 4 Exemplary | SCORE |
| SELF-CONFIDENCE | Shows no confidence or poise in | Some modification needed  | Candidate is poised and self-confident    |             |       |
| (PD)            | the classroom                   | to exhibit confidence     |   |             |       |
|                 | 1 Remediation Needed            | 2 Developing              | 3 Meets Standard                          | 4 Exemplary | SCORE |
| ENERGY AND      | Shows little enthusiasm or      |                           | Candidate exhibits enthusiasm and         |             |       |
| ENTHUSIASM (PD) | energy                          |                           | energy                                    |             |       |

COMMENTS:

### COMMUNICATION

|   | 1 Remediation Needed                                  | 2 Developing  | 3 Meets Standard                                       | 4 Exemplary | SCORE |
|---|---|---|--|-------------|-------|
| EFFECTIVE<br>COMMUNICATION<br>SKILLS (PD) | Commonly uses ineffective oral/written communication. | Occasionally uses effective oral/written communication.   | Consistently uses effective oral/written communication |             |       |
|   | 1 Remediation Needed                                  | 2 Developing  | 3 Meets Standard                                       | 4 Exemplary | SCORE |
| ACCURATE ORAL/WRITTEN COMMUNICATION (PD)  | Commonly uses substandard oral/written communication  | Uses standard oral/written communication most of the time | Consistently uses standard oral/written communication  |             |       |

COMMENTS: Please specify recurring oral and/or written errors

# INSTRUCTION

| 1 Remediation Needed   | 2 Developing  | 3 Meets Standard   | 4 Exemplary  | SCORE   |
|--|---|--|--|---|
| Does not have an observable and measureable learning outcome(s)  | Outcome is missing one part of an observable and measurable outcome but aligns with content standard within the core curriculum   | Outcome is measurable and observable and aligns with content standard within the core curriculum.                      |  |   |
|  |   |  | 4 Exemplary  | SCORE   |
| No attempt to identify the teaching strategy on the lesson plan  | not necessarily aligned with the lesson   | aligns with the lesson   |  |   |
| 1 Remediation Needed   | 2 Developing  |  | 4 Exemplary  | SCORE   |
| to teach content even though such resources would enhance the lesson.  |   | aligned with the content of the lesson.  |  |   |
|  | 2 Developing  |  | 4 Exemplary  | SCORE   |
| No part of the lesson recognizes activities or strategies that are developmentally appropriate for this grade level                      | Attempts to design a developmentally appropriate lesson for this grade level but lacks the required expertise   | Differentiation is evident in the lesson and is appropriate for this grade level.                                      |  |   |
| 1 Remediation Needed   | 2 Developing  | 3 Meets Standard   | 4 Exemplary  | SCORE   |
| Displays serious weakness in content knowledge   | Has difficulty with some subject/content knowledge  | Generally has strong content knowledge base in the subject area(s)   |  |   |
| 1 Remediation Needed   | 2 Developing  | 3 Meets Standard   | 4 Exemplary  | SCORE   |
| Has no lesson plan or one that is  | Has missing parts or inadequate   |  |  |   |
| substandard  | planning gaps in the lesson   | Has a thorough and well-developed lesson plan  |  |   |
| 1 Remediation Needed   | planning gaps in the lesson  2 Developing   | lesson plan  3 Meets Standard  | 4 Exemplary  | SCORE   |
|  | planning gaps in the lesson   | lesson plan  |  | SCORE   |
| 1 Remediation Needed Transitions create distracting situations and do not move students through the lesson content. Students are unclear | 2 Developing Transitions are difficult; creating some confusion in moving students through the lesson content. They are somewhat unclear about what   | 3 Meets Standard Seamless transitions from topic to topic move students through the lesson content. Students know what |  | SCORE   |
|  | 1 Remediation Needed  No attempt to identify the teaching strategy on the lesson plan      1 Remediation Needed  Does not use additional resources to teach content even though such resources would enhance the lesson.      1 Remediation Needed  No part of the lesson recognizes activities or strategies that are developmentally appropriate for this grade level      1 Remediation Needed  Displays serious weakness in content knowledge  1 Remediation Needed | measureable learning outcome(s)    Dose  | measureable learning outcome(s)    Observable and measurable outcome but aligns with content standard within the core curriculum | measureable learning outcome(s)  observable and measurable outcome but aligns with content standard within the core curriculum  1 Remediation Needed  No attempt to identify the teaching strategy on the lesson plan  1 Remediation Needed  2 Developing  A teaching strategy is identified but not necessarily aligned with the lesson  1 Remediation Needed  2 Developing  3 Meets Standard  4 Exemplary  A teaching strategy is identified but not necessarily aligned with the lesson  1 Remediation Needed  2 Developing  3 Meets Standard  4 Exemplary  Resources were used, and they aligned with the content of the lesson.  1 Remediation Needed  No part of the lesson recognizes activities or strategies that are developmentally appropriate for this grade level  Attempts to design a developmentally appropriate for this grade level but lacks the required expertise  1 Remediation Needed  2 Developing  3 Meets Standard  4 Exemplary  Differentiation is evident in the lesson and is appropriate for this grade level.  1 Remediation Needed  2 Developing  3 Meets Standard  4 Exemplary  Attempts to design a developmentally appropriate for this grade level but lacks the required expertise  3 Meets Standard  4 Exemplary  Attempts to design a developmentally appropriate for this grade level.  Beson for this grade level but lacks the required expertise  1 Remediation Needed  2 Developing  3 Meets Standard  4 Exemplary  Generally has strong content knowledge base in the subject area(s) |

COMMENTS:

# **CLASSROOM MANAGEMENT**

|                            | 1 Remediation Needed               | 2 Developing                          | 3 Meets Standard                       | 4 Exemplary | SCORE |
|----------------------------|------------------------------------|---------------------------------------|--|-------------|-------|
| CLASSROOM                  | Ignores issues of control or       | Is aware of management, but           | Promotes class attention, instruction, |             |       |
| MANAGEMENT (PO #5)         | attention of learners              | struggles to control class or sustain | and management in a positive way.      |             |       |
| (Classroom control)        |                                    | attention of learners                 |  |             |       |
|                            | 1 Remediation Needed               | 2 Developing                          | 3 Meets Standard                       | 4 Exemplary | SCORE |
| STUDENT INVOLVEMENT        | Ignores issues of involvement      | Tends to focus on specific learners   | Works to involve most learners         |             |       |
| (PO #2, PO # 3)            |                                    |                                       |  |             |       |
|                            | 1 Remediation Needed               | 2 Developing                          | 3 Meets Standard                       | 4 Exemplary | SCORE |
| INTERPERSONAL CARING       | Does not exhibit caring attributes | Exhibits some interpersonal caring    | Exhibits continuous interpersonal      |             |       |
| ATTRIBUTES                 |                                    | attributes toward some learners       | caring to all learners                 |             |       |
| (PO #9)                    |                                    |                                       |  |             |       |
|                            | 1 Remediation Needed               | 2 Developing                          | 3 Meets Standard                       | 4 Exemplary | SCORE |
| TIME MANAGEMENT            | Does not make an effort to keep    | Makes some effort to keep learners    | Makes concerted effort to keep all     |             |       |
| (PO #3)_(Keeps students on | learners on task and instructional | on task for much of the instructional | learners on task effectively using     |             |       |
| task)                      | time is lost                       | time                                  | instructional time                     |             |       |
|                            | 1 Remediation Needed               | 2 Developing                          | 3 Meets Standard                       | 4 Exemplary | SCORE |
| INSTRUCTIONAL              | Makes no attempt to encourage      | Makes some attempt to encourage       | Makes attempts to encourage higher     |             |       |
| STRATEGIES (PO #8)         | higher order thinking or address   | higher order thinking or address      | order thinking framed in 21st Century  |             |       |
| (Higher Order Thinking)    | 21st Century Learning themes       | 21st Century Learning themes          | Learning themes                        |             |       |

COMMENTS:

# **ASSESSMENT STRATEGY**

|                     | 1 Remediation Needed             | 2 Developing                    | 3 Meets Standard                     | 4 Exemplary | SCORE |
|---------------------|----------------------------------|---------------------------------|--------------------------------------|-------------|-------|
| ALIGNS ASSESSMENT   | Assessment strategy is not       | Uses formative assessment that  | Plans and uses formative             |             |       |
| STRATEGY TO OUTCOME | related to the learning outcome  | is somewhat aligned with the    | assessment strategy that is directly |             |       |
| (PO #6)             |                                  | learning outcome                | related to the learning outcome      |             |       |
|                     | 1 Remediation Needed             | 2 Developing                    | 3 Meets Standard                     | 4 Exemplary | SCORE |
| ALIGNS ASSESSMENT   | Lesson is inappropriately        | Lesson is only minimally        | Lesson is structured and             |             |       |
| STRATEGY TO CONTENT | structured and implemented       | structured and implemented for  | implemented for guiding learners     |             |       |
| (PO #6)             | for supporting learners in       | supporting learners in learning | with the support necessary to learn  |             |       |
|                     | learning the content             | the content                     | the content                          |             |       |
|                     | 1 Remediation Needed             | 2 Developing                    | 3 Meets Standard                     | 4 Exemplary | SCORE |
| ASSESSMENT FEEDBACK | Provides learners with           | Provides learners with some     | Provides learners with appropriate   |             |       |
| (PO #6)             | inappropriate or ineffective     | feedback that supports and      | and effective feedback that          |             |       |
|                     | feedback as support for their    | enhances their learning         | supports and enhances their          |             |       |
|                     | learning                         |                                 | learning                             |             |       |
|                     | 1 Remediation Needed             | 2 Developing                    | 3 Meets Standard                     | 4 Exemplary | SCORE |
| ASSESSMENT          | Some monitoring of student       | Exemplifies occasional          | Exemplifies ongoing monitoring       |             |       |
| MONITORING (PO #6)  | learning exists but              | monitoring to engage learners   | and support to engage learners       |             |       |
|                     | improvement is needed            | and address their needs and     | and assess and address learner       |             |       |
|                     | especially related to using      | includes some effective         | needs, including the use of          |             |       |
|                     | effective questioning strategies | questioning strategies          | effective questioning                |             |       |

| SIGNATURE OF EVALUATOR: |  |
|-------------------------|--|
|                         |  |



# **New Program Assessment Rubric**

| <b>Program Reviewed:</b> |
|--------------------------|
| Reviewer:                |
| Date:                    |

**A note to institutions**: In order for reviewers to find information with ease, please be sure to clearly label each standard and indicator. Bookmarking the PDF or providing a table of contents is helpful in keeping the document organized. Please ensure that the information outlined on the rubric is available under the standard listed. Please submit each syllabus as a separate file in a zipped folder. When are you are complete, please submit your proposal to <a href="mailto:sbogan@doe.in.gov">sbogan@doe.in.gov</a>.

Guidelines have been provided for each standard with expected page limits. While these are simply guidelines, we anticipate submissions to average around 15-20 pages, not inclusive of course syllabi and content standards matrix.

# **Standard 1: Rationale**

Guidelines: Please limit this section to no more than two pages.

|     | Evidence               | For Approval   | Inadequate   | Not<br>Approved | Approved | Comments |
|-----|------------------------|--|--|-----------------|----------|----------|
| 1.1 | Program<br>Description | Proposal identifies content area, licensure level and delivery model of the program.  Program is innovative and designed to meet needs of 21st century candidates for this content area. Program may include promising "out of the box" approaches to teacher preparation. | Program does not appear to meet the needs of the 21 <sup>st</sup> C candidate for this content area. Program does not appear to incorporate current best practice. |                 |          |          |

| 1.2 | Needs<br>Assessment<br>Data | Data clearly identifies need for licensure program and has established LEA relations or defined state needs in order to ensure local and/or state needs will be fulfilled. | Data does not adequately support need for new program. |  |  |  |  |
|-----|-----------------------------|--|--|--|--|--|--|
|-----|-----------------------------|--|--|--|--|--|--|

# **Standard 2: Curriculum**

**Guidelines:** Please submit each syllabus as a separate file in a zipped folder. Include matrix as part of main submission.

|     | Evidence   | For Approval   | Inadequate   | Not<br>Approved | Approved | Comments |
|-----|--|--|--|-----------------|----------|----------|
| 2.1 | Matrix<br>aligning<br>program to<br>appropriate<br>educator<br>standards | Program aligns to state approved standards and provides candidates with knowledge specifically relevant to 21st century candidates. Matrix documents standards coverage at the micro or indicator level. General education, professional education and content preparation must be included for initial programs.  For an example click here.  | Program does not ensure all essential state pedagogy and content standards are adequately addressed and assessed. Matrix documents coverage of standards at the macro level.  Excessive coursework may be required.  |                 |          |          |
| 2.2 | Syllabi for<br>required<br>courses                                       | A syllabus is submitted for each required course.  Required courses are streamlined, progressive and model innovative pedagogy. Course materials and assignments are strategic, rigorous and target skills required of 21st C teachers. Syllabi include:  • Course objectives and goals • List of required texts with citations • Outline of class schedule • Description of required assignments • Sample of 2-3 assessments  Please include a table that highlights in which specific courses program candidates are instructed and assessed on the following: • Assessment, • Use of Technology to Impact P-12 Student Learning, • Cultural Competency, • Scientifically Based Reading Instruction (SBRI). For an example click here. | Syllabi do not reflect all required components or not all are included.  Courses may not model effective pedagogy. Materials and assignments may be outdated. Delivery method may not match assignments/assessments appropriately.  List highlighting courses focusing on Assessment, Technology, Cultural Competency, and SBRI is incomplete. |                 |          |          |

**Standard 3 Clinical and Field Based Experiences** – In Indiana, supervised clinical field experience (CFE) is defined as a university employed adjunct or faculty member assigned or contracted with to provide feedback to candidates based on observation of a candidate's performance in a school setting. School based partners for initial programs (commonly referred to as cooperating teachers) do not count as supervisors of clinical experiences for this section. For non-IHE programs, supervised clinical experience is defined as non-IHE employed personnel who have teaching expertise that is contracted with to provide feedback to candidates based on observation of a candidate's performance in a school setting.

**Guidelines:** Please keep submissions to 3-6 pages for this standard including any sample assignments or rubrics.

|     | Evidence                           | For Approval  | Inadequate   | Not<br>Approved | Approved | Comments |
|-----|------------------------------------|---|--|-----------------|----------|----------|
| 3.1 | Location and<br>learner<br>contact | CFE provides minimum requirements of 10 weeks of full time student teaching with experienced teacher.   | The evidence and narrative do not clearly describe the location of the program's CFE and/or amount of learner contact, or show a location and amount of learner contact that do not meet state expectations. CFE relies primarily on candidate observation and minimal expectations for actual responsibility for teaching.  |                 |          |          |
| 3.2 | Supervision                        | CFE Supervisor is a university employed adjunct or faculty member knowledgeable in candidate's anticipated educational role and capable of providing multiple forms of feedback. Supervision provides systematic formative candidate feedback based on actual observation of candidate's performance.  Cooperating teacher is rated effective or highly effective. Innovative and collaborative student teaching models are used. | The evidence and narrative do not clearly describe the qualifications of the CFE Supervisor, or the CFE Supervisor is not a university employed adjunct or faculty member.  Supervision of candidate's performance relies predominately on cooperating teacher. Program relies heavily on review of lesson plans rather than actual observation to provide candidate feedback. Minimum requirements for cooperating teacher are not stated or are inadequate to ensure proper supervision. |                 |          |          |

| 3.3 | Candidate<br>impact on<br>student<br>learning | CFE includes opportunities to assess student learning outcomes in a variety of ways using formative and summative measures, develops candidate's ability to enhance learning by analyzing assessment results, and allows candidate to practice developing, delivering and analyzing results of commonly used assessments in the state and schools most appropriate for expected educational role.     | The evidence and narrative do not clearly describe the student learning outcome assessments included in the CFE, or the student learning outcome assessments do not meet state expectations. Program relies heavily on candidate reflection on lessons rather than on P-12 student learning data to determine effectiveness.  |  |
|-----|---|---|---|--|
| 3.4 | Diversity<br>and Grade<br>Level<br>Coverage   | Proposal clearly describes tracking system to ensure diversity in field placements as well as appropriate grade level coverage.  CFE provides opportunities for candidate to participate with students of diversity¹ in a variety of ways, including that of the candidate's expected educational role, as well as opportunities to work with a variety of parents, administrators, and school staff. | Systematic tracking of experiences to ensure all candidates have opportunities to work with diverse students in an appropriate variety of grade levels is not ensured.  The evidence and narrative do not clearly describe the diversity experiences or grade level coverage within the CFE, or the diversity and grade level experiences within the CFE do not adequately prepare the candidate to help all students¹ learn. |  |

<sup>1</sup> "All Students" and "All Learners" refer to diversity created through differences among groups of people and individuals based on ethnicity, race, socioeconomic status, gender, exceptionalities, language, religion, sexual orientation, and geographical area per the NCATE definition.

# **Standard 4 Evaluation:**

# **Program Evaluation**

- 1. The Unit Assessment System clearly denotes how the program and program participants will be assessed. Specific attention should be paid to addressing how the new program assessment fits within the current UAS and how data will be disaggregated for program assessment and improvement.
- 2. There are provisions for continuing evaluation of the program based on performance criteria to be met by those graduates completing the program.

# **Candidate Evaluation**

- 1. The program has systematic procedures for monitoring candidate admission, progress and completion of the program.
- 2. The proposal includes a description of assessment procedures and timelines that reference the approved Unit Assessment System and specifies: a. products and performances to be assessed, and
- b. standards of performance required to advance in the program.
- 3. The proposal should include plans/assessments to address, candidate content knowledge (min of 2 assessments for this area), pedagogical knowledge, student impact/P-12 student outcomes, SBRR reading, use of technology for effective teaching and cultural competency.
- 4. Systematic approaches are used to assist candidates who are making unsatisfactory progress in their programs.
- 5. Candidate evaluation includes all required testing requirements for licensure.

Guidelines: Not inclusive of student teaching evaluation rubrics, please limit documentation for this standard to 3-4 pages.

|     | Evidence   | For Approval  | Inadequate  | Not<br>Approved | Approved | Comments |
|-----|--|---|---|-----------------|----------|----------|
| 4.1 | Unit Assessment<br>System (UAS)<br>program<br>evaluation | Includes a summary of UAS. Unit regularly examines validity and utility of program data produced and makes modifications to keep abreast of changes in assessment technology and in professional standards. Unit regularly evaluates the capacity and effectiveness of the UAS with internal and external stakeholders. Effective steps have been taken to eliminate bias in assessments and to establish fairness, accuracy and consistency. Data is systematically used for program improvement. Provisions are in place to collect follow-up data.  Description includes a flowchart and timeline for collection and analysis of data. | UAS is limited in data collection including candidate and graduate performance information which can then be used to improve program. UAS does not regularly and comprehensively gather, aggregate, summarize and analyze assessment information on its programs. UAS does not use appropriate information technologies to maintain its assessment system. Bias in its assessments has not been examined. Efforts to establish fairness, accuracy, and consistency are not apparent. Data collection system has not been demonstrated to be consistent and successful |                 |          |          |

| 4.2 | Evaluation of student teacher evaluation tools or rubrics as well designed, reliable, valid assessment instruments.  When rubrics are used descriptions of indicators are given at all levels. | Student teacher evaluation tools or rubrics may not meet state expectations for rigor. Rubrics may not appear to be reliable or valid. Rubrics may not be designed to be an effective measurement tool. |  |  |  |
|-----|--|---|--|--|--|
|-----|--|---|--|--|--|

# **Standard 5: Governance**

Guidelines: Please limit this section to no more than two pages.

|     | Evidence   | For Approval   | Inadequate  | Not<br>Approved | Approved | Comments |
|-----|------------|--|---|-----------------|----------|----------|
| 5.1 | Governance | Brief descriptions of program leadership roles and responsibilities are provided.  Leadership for program ensures effective coordination of systems needed. Governance process manages curriculum, instruction and resources needed to support high quality program. | Leadership does not ensure effective coordination of all systems needed to ensure high quality program. |                 |          |          |

# **Standard 6: Schedule**

Guidelines: Documentation for this standard may be as short as a paragraph, but please limit this section to no more than two pages.

|    | Evidence                    | For Approval   | Inadequate  | Not<br>Approved | Approved | Comments |
|----|-----------------------------|--|---|-----------------|----------|----------|
| 6. | Projected<br>Implementation | Plan for communication, implementation, graduation, and anticipated census are included in proposal. | Inadequate plans have been made for program implementation. |                 |          |          |

# **Approval**

- 1. Programs must be fully approved by the Indiana Department of Education **prior** to being offered.
- 2. Programs are required to submit reports as requested by the IDOE. All approved programs are subject to Title II low performing criteria.
- 3. In the event that the program is discontinued, the institution must notify the IDOE.